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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees present their annual repart together with the nancial statements and auditors’ report of the charitable
company for the year ended 51 August 2022 The annweal report serves the purpase of both 8 Trustees report. and a
directors repodt under company law. The White Horse Federation [TWHF) was incorporated on 18th May 2012

Owr founding Chiel Executive Officer, Dr, Mick Capstick, netired from the rode of Chief Executive Officer on 515t August
2023 after ten years in post. Under Nick's leadership the Truest has grown and developed to baling & natiaonally recognized
Trust The Trustees are extremely grateful for Nick's lpadership, and he should be rightly proud of the legacy he has budly
MNick is recognised as a leader with natéonal renown and has worked on acoess to free school meals o deprived childien
and provided advice to senior poditicians throughout his carear, We wish him the veny best in his retirement

Falbgwing the CEO decision to reting, the Trusteas commissioned a eading recruitrment partner to create a robust and
thorough recruitmant process for the aopeintment of the new CED. The rale garnersd & strang field of applicatiens from
& range of sectors Trustees are delighted have appointed Mr. Paul Smith as the Chief Executive Officer of TWHF. Pawl joins
after being the CEO of one of the highest-performing MATs In the country. Prior to this rale, Paul was employed as a
Regional Schools Commissioner, Ofsted inspector and Mational Leader of Education, Trustees look foreard to supporting
Paul and the witer senlor team as they develop the new strategic plan for The White Harse Federation

&5 at the date of these Accounts TWHF operated 26 Primarny. 5 Secondary, 2 Special schools in Swindon, Wilshire,
Cwfordshire, and Berkshine TWHF has a focused passion for working collaboratively to provide first-class leaming
exponences toa wide range of children for them to stiive for excellence as they enter the next phase of their education
and, ultimately, the wordd of work TWHF have a combirsed pupil capacity excluding Mursery of 1353 and a rell of 12409
at end of September 202 In addition, there was 385 Nursery places recorded.

During the yoar, TWHF took the decision (o request for The Peak Academy to be re-brokered. As a result of this. Peak
Academy was transferred o Reach South in August 2022,

TWHF |s commitied to values-based education where teaching uses values 1o creste a strong learning enviranmeent thst
enfances academic attainment and halps studants develop social and melatfonship skills that last throwghout their lhves
Values are principles that drive behaviour, they influence cur sctions and attitudes and becorme our frarmewark for [ving
The wide range of positive human values encouraged in TWHE schoals include patience, respect. falrness, tolerance,
compassion, and collaboration A posithve leaming emdrenment s schiedsed through the values modelled by staff
throughaut each sehosl

COHEIECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Dbjects and Alms

The prncipal chiective and activity of TWHF is to operabe as a Multi Acadermy Trust for the benelit of young pecple and
to deliver a high quality of education that in turm broadens horizgors and provides opportunitios for success in later o

TWWHF |5 recognised as ane of the langest Trusts in England and is a key member of the Queon Street Group
TWHF almns ta deliver the above alms throwgh the fallowang key pillas af sctiity:

- Continue to rA=e the quality of education arnd antainment of all students.
Frovide a broad and balancied curriculurm. including extracurricular activities. supparted by central Trust expertise of
School Improvement respurces allowing the MAT te pool resources effectivoly.

- Ensuries school leaders are focused on Teaching and Learning outcomes and not administration

« Provides value for money for the funds receleed.

= Comduct TWHF Business in accordance with thie highest standards of integrity. probity. and cpenness

The mission of TWHF |5 to broaden the hod 2ons of yaung people theowgh a high-guality education. The Trust works hard
to rdkon sure that each pupil in its schools - regardless of thair faith, race. gender, background or starting polnt - achieves
thelr pobential and goes on to unlversity or a career af their chalce

Tie 'Wihete Harse Federation
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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Public Benelil

The Trustees confirm that they have complied with the duty in Section I7(5) of the Chanties Act 200 (o have cdue regand
to the Charity Cormrmission's general gukdance on public benefit in exercising their powers or duties Thay have refemod
to this guidance when revansing TWHE aims and objectives and i planning its fubune activities.

The key public benefit delvered by TWHF |5 the development of high-guality education provided within (s schools. to
the publhc bemefit of all children local to these schools

STRATECIC REPORT

Ofsted

The Trust has achieved significant success with Cfsted inspections as 5t Luke's Special School was judged as gbod in all
areas after joining the Trest as an inadequate schoal, In addition, Larkhill Prirary Schoal was judged good after balng
Juedged as regquiring improvement before belng sponsored by TWHF. In addition, Nylard and Tregoie schools both
continued to be assessed as Cood Schools in their visits, whilst Bowserhill remained Reguires iImprosemant

Key Performance indicators & Metrics Summary

TWHF uses a number of key benchmarks to evaluate performance and drive budgetary control These include Pupél
Teacher Ratio, Teacher to Support 5taff Ratios. Average Salaries and MNon-Salary Spend ratios. Buedget setting and
manitaring have a clear focus on Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning (BCFP) and TWHF use the data to drive Year
on Year performance and identify those schools in need of additional focus In order to ensure ey benchmarks are
targeted

Ag funding 4 based an pupll Aurmbers this is alse s key performance indigatar. Pupil nuimibers for 2021022 wera 12605 an
imcrease of TP ower 2020021

Annual IncCome Annual Operating Expense
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Resanes People
i 21/22 a4 padt of our recovery progeam, we added £1E6m 650+ FTE Teaching Staff
to our reserves which means we now have ovar 2%
TESEIDS B850+ FTE Support Staff
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Koy Pupll KPis

231 Prirmary Pupll Teacher Ratbo 160 Secondary Teacher Bupil Batia
Achisvements and Perfarmance

There had Dean 8 strong ermphasis on mowng at pace to make up for the dissuption caused by the Covid pandemic
Whilst challenges remain. we are focused on making up far kost time by praviding a high quality of educatian and a
renewed locus on autcomes and destinations.

Maintaining high attendarnce bas been very challenging durimg the pandemie period but with resiience and
determination. most TWHF schools” attendance iigures compan positively with lacal and national sverages. Cross-Trest
attendance strateqgies are being developed to improve attendance further.

Safeguarding continues to be schools forermost prioeity, All schools have received bespoke support, advice and guidance
around keeping pupils safe and addressing local need

We walcome the return of national standardised assessrments in 2022,
Primary Level
Throughout the academic yoar 202122, the Trust has focused on catch-up and on improving standands as puplls fully
raturn o the classroorn This was achleved by
Primary sthoals successiully modifying and sdapting their curriculum post lockdown, As a result transition into the
next academés year clearly identified gaps in pupils’ learming and allowed for teachers ta plan well-sequenced lessans.

Leadership development and succession planning continues to offer significant career advancement apparfurithes
with three former Assistart Principals securing intermal Headships with TWHF,

« Al sehoolks hiding a clear intent for their curfculum. providing coherent and well-sequenced aporoach to cone and
foundation subjects

Secondary level

The retusn to national assessments at K54 and K55 represented a useful checkpaint for our Trust. The Trust will review and
implement a new educational strategy from 202325 The strategy will rellect the aim to provide the highest quality of
education and outcomes lor our students and will deliver the Key aims of the Covernment’s White Paper.

As a Trust wa are committed 1o increasing the numbers of students entering the EBace and rafsing attainment levels to
match the national amibltion and ensure targats In each of pur schools aro robust and aspirational

Capital Programmes
Darlng the year. TWHF completed work on a numiber of projects secured via SCA capital grants and LA funding including

Devizes roof replacement phases continued along with Heating and Boilor repiacements Boiler réplatements Bcross &
Aumber of sehools. Developrrent of enmanced facilitles at 5t Luke's

TWHF Is also acthvely engaging In a number of green initiathee imestments including LED light replacernents, Solar panats
and heat pumps There continues to be a focus or enturing & focuws on imaesting In 1o support the move to net Zero.

The Wikite Horse Federation

Aniniusl Beport and Financind Statsmnants - Fosr thae year snoed S Bugust 200
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Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

STRUCTURE. GOVERMAMCE ANMD MAMNAGEMENT
Constitulion

TWHF Is & Company Limited by Cuarantes and an exempt charity, The current Articles of Association were adopted
August st 2008 and reflect the mixed natune of TWHF fallowing the on Boarding of new schools which included 6 Church
ef England (Coft] primary schools. The Artlcles of Association reflect this structune of schools and to ensure governanco
oversight of CoE schoals by the Salisbury Diocesan Board of Education

Details of the Trustees who serded throughout the year and to the date of accounts approval. except as noted, ang
included in the Reference arnd Administrative Detalls on pages 1 to 2.

Members' lability

Each Member of TWHF undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Company in the event of It being wound up while
they are a memiber, or within one year if they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required. not exceeding £10.
for the debits and llabilites contracted before they cease to be a member

Trustees' Indemnities

In accordance with normal commnencial practice TYWHF bas purchased insurance to protect Trsstees and officers from
claims arising fram negligent acts, errors or omissions otcurring whilst on Acadérmy business, Such insurance shall nof
extend bo any claim arising fromn any act or omission which the Trustees knew to be a breach of trust or duty or rethiess
actions

TRUSTEES
Appointmaont of Trustees

The Artickes govern the appaintmant and role of Trustess and allow for the appointment of up to 12 Trustees for &
folir-year period, except that this tme limit does not apply to the Chief Executive Officer {CEO) Subdect to remaining
gfigibde to be a paricular type of Trustes, army Trustee may be re-appointed or fe-slected

Whan appointing new Trustoes, the Boand will ghve consideration to the skills and oxperience of eating Truttees (n order
to ensune that the Boand has the necessary shills to contribute fully to TWHF's develcpment.

induction and Training of Trustess

The training and inducticn provided for new Trustees will depend wpon thelr existing eaponence, Trusteos ard
encoursged to visit schools and meet the Senior Leadership, although in recent yearns this hes been physically limited by
Covid restrictions bt this s now recowering to normal levels. All Trustees are provided with coples of policies, procedunes.
minutes, sccounts. budgets. plans and other necessary docurments that they will need o undertake thalr role as Trustees

The Trustess and LGE's ane alsa supported by an independent governance expert. wiho provides ongaing advice. training
and development on governancs matters for these bodies

MWHFs Articles of Association have resulted in tho designation of a number of Trustees as Foundatiaon Trustess and a
Corparate Membes, Dan Roberts. who represents the interests of the Salisbury Diecesan Board of Education

Thd Wiits Hiorss Fedods ther
r Ariracsl Report and Financial Statermants - For the vesst onded 1) August 2003
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Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

CRGANISATION STRUCTURE
Gavormnance

Covernance of TWHF continued to evalve during the year with clear focus on long term planning. risk manag@ément and
challenge as wall as training of Local Baards of Covernors, AR sudit of Trustees Shills ang exXpersnce was carrbsd out

TWHF operates a number of sub-Committess that report inte the Boaard - namely Risk & Audit, Teaching Learning and
Standards. Pay & Remuneration, Fnance and a People committes. The role of each sub-committes in moenitoring fisk
rmanagement has been clarified with each sub-committes respansible for oversagit of rsks within (5 scope of activities
Reparts and updates are provided to Bisk & Auglt committes from other sub committess as reeded to enable it to
manitor fisk management acnoss TWHF and report to TWHF Board. During the year, we continued to ensune that the sk
register was embedded throughout the governance structure ALl Trustees (with the exception of the Chalr of Chairs
Trustes] have been appointed to senve on at leasl one sub-committoe

Thie Board of Trustees meets & minimum of four times a year and nosrmally includes a strategy sway day althowgh Covid
has chviously meant a number of these meetings have been virtual There have been a numbar of other focused
meetings during the year centerding on financial planning, growth and capacity and successkon planning and these will
continue into the coming year. The Board establishes an overall framework for the governance of TWHF and determines
mambership, terms of reference and procedunes of its sub-committess and working groups

it may recetve written and verbal reports including policles from sub-commitiess for ratification it monitars the actvities
of sub-committees through the minutes of their meetings. Working groups ane established to perform specific tasks oved
& Hmited tirmescale, The Trusiees consider that the combination of Board meetings and Committee meetings with the
additional ad hoc mestings focuted on Ky issues ensure that the Board ane Tully inforrmed of key isues and challenges

The following decisions are resereed B0 tho Board af Trustees: to consider any propasals for changes bo the status of
canstitution of TWHF and (s committes strectune. to appaint or remove the Chair andfor Vice Chair. to appoing the CECQ
and Clerk, to approve the Annual plan and budget The Trustess are also responsibie for setting general palicy, adopting
an annual plan and budget, approving the statutory accounts, maonftoring perfermance and estabdishing the vision for
thae Trust

The Board of Trustees has devolved respansibility for day-to-day managerment to the CEQ. The CED implements the
objectives lald down by the Trustees and reports back to them on perfarmance in ling with the farmal scheme of
dedegation

ORGANISATION STRUCTURE - Operational

TWHF i the parent cormpany Tor all the Academies as listed below. In addition. there are 2 subsidiary compares. ie. The
‘White Horse Educational Services Company and The White Harse Consultancy Services Company which have been
recently incorporated and dormant for 202122 The expectation will be for income to be generated in these durirg
2022/2% with all surpluses covenanted back to the parent TWHF

Thi 31 schools within TWHF are managed across three maln regiond of Swindan, Wiltshine arnd Oufard/Barkchine amnd
areswth (s shewr n the table below

T Wit e Horsn Fodora themn =i
Anniual Report and Financial Staterments - For the year ended 51 Adsgpast 2000
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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Primary Secondary

Drove Primary 15t Jul 12
Rodbourne Cheney Primary 15t Jul 12 2011 /12
Tregoze Primary T8t Jul 12
Hyland Schoal 1=t Jul 12
Mountford Manor st Jul 12
The Croft 15t Sep 12
Moreden Primary Srod Ot 53
Zouch Academy 151 Apr 14
Haydon Wick Primary 15t Sep 14 2014 /15 The Ridgeway & Sixkth Form 15t Moy 1a
Southwald Primary 15t Apr 16
Garse Hill Prirmary 15t Apr 16
Southbroom Infants =g haar 17 e
west Kidlingten 1t May 17 il A ol
Larkhill Ist Mar 18 IMA Academy Ist Feb 18
2017718 ATOM Trust 15t Aug 18
ATOM Trust: Ist Aug 18 Melksham Oak
Bowehill
Seend ColE
Forest & Sandridge CofE
ShawCofE
S5t Gearge’s Cof E
5t Mary’s Broughton Gifferd Cof E
The Manor C of E
Gaglebrook Ist Sep 18
StMory & AllSaints Cof E st Now 18 St Lukes Academy 151 Sept 18
Grange Infants Ist Mar I8
Grange Jurnlor 15t Mar 19
Whitelands Academy 15t Sep 20

Executive Direcrors for the key areas of Primarny. Secondary provide the necessary owersight and direction to the sectors
& maatrix mansgement structure @xists allowing functional direction in ey aneas of Central Services. ie Estates 1T, Finance,
HA and Business senices, and a key operational delivery to the schools as needed.

The Wihns Horse Federabion

A Cormpany Limssaad by Cusranios
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

The CEO works with the Senior Leadership Teamn [5LT] The SUT has evolved through the year and as at year end consisted
af the CED, Sector Directors for Primarny and Secondary, OO0 / CFO and Directos for People,  The SLT manages TWHF at
an cperational level, implementing the policies lald down by the Trustees. A Scheme of Delegation has been agreed with
the Trustees,

The CEQ, COO f CFO and Chair of Finance Cormmities an respondible for the authonsation of spending within agreed
budgets. Defined spending authosities are devaolved to budget halders. The CEC and Sector Directors are responstble for
the appaintment of teaching and teaching support staff. The COO [ CFD I8 resporsible for appointing non-teaching
support stafl werking closaly with functional leads. Senior role appointments abways include a Trustea on the Intenses
panel

The CEO, Paul Smith, I= the Aceounting Officer from 010922 and priar to this Or N Capstick OBE was the TWHF
Accounting Officer

Arrargoments for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trustees consider the Board of Trustess and the senior leadership team comprise the key management persanne| of
TWHF in charge of directing and controlling, running and operating TWHF on a day to day basis. all Trustees give their
time freely and no Trustee received remuneratian in the year

Detalls of Trustess expenses and related party transactions are disclesed in the notes to the accounts. Tha pay of ey
managerment personnel i reviewed annually and normally increased in sccordance with average earmings.

The Pay and Remuneration of the Executive management team and Directors is set by the Pay and Remuneration
Committes under thelr Terms of Referance. School Principals and Teaschers pay s sot in accordance with teachers pay
and conditions, and support staff by National Joint Council (MIC) and Hay scales as appropriate

Th Pay and Remuneration committes utillse external repons and benchmarking wihen satting pay awards. Setting of
thie CED ermunderation, and assoclated performance targets and rinvdew, i3 carried out By the Chair of Trust Board,

Trade Union facility time

Relevant Union officials

Mumber of employees who were relevant union officials during year )

Full Time equivalent employes number 06

Percentage of time spent on facility time Hurmiber of Emiployees
n -

1-50% s

51-95% .

100% 'y

The amount of fecility time spent as 8 percentage of the total pay bill is iImmaterial,
Connected Crganisations, including Related Party Belationships
There are no related partles which either control o significantly influence the decisions and operations of TWHF

TWHF owns the share capital of Tha White Horse Educational Sendces Ltd and The White Homa Consultancy Ltd. Thesa
were darfrant in the year,

There afe na spensars or formal Parent Teacher Assoclations (PTA) assoclated with TWHF althouwgh BTAs exist in some of
the schools within TWHF

Thie Whites Horss Federation i
dnmaal Feport and Financial Slaterments - For the yese ended 51 daeguss 2007
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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Engagement with Employees £ Employment of the disabled
TWHF gnsue angagerment with employeos throwgh the fallowing

« Posithve engagement with Uinions at iocal and national level
- Principal regular briefings from Trust and Sector leads

= Nowshottors at sehood sites and media campaigns

= Crowedcasts on a varlety of issues as needed. &g Covid updates
« Lise of sector leads netwark

« Flexible working

= Wgll Being First Aiders and asseciated wellbeing training

TWHF is an Equal Dppartunities Employer, and works [n conjunction with the Equality Act 2010 and supports disabled
people Including those with long term health conditicns, learning disabdities and sc called “hidden® disabilitias such as
dyslexia, If an applicant canfirms that they have a disability we can make reasonable adjustments o erdure that any
selection processes  Including the interview  ane falr and equitabde,

TWHF also supports disabled empioyees by following the Managing Employee Health, Wellbeing and Attendance
Procedure in Schools/Academies. This palicy ensures that TWHF works with Occupational Health in erder to support all
disabllitles with intermal training programmes and career development

Engagement with supplies. customers and others in a business relattonship with TWHF

Delivering the TWHF strategy requirés strong relationships with suppliers. customes, [pupils and parants [/ carers] as wel|
&g the wider carmimunity whene the sehools ane |ocated, In additan there s a need 1o sfsune Strong integratkon with the
wider stakehalder groups of various regulatony organisations and Local Autharities.

Tha 5T are responsible for maintaining collaborative and transparent relaticnships with approgriate moembers of the DIE
and ESFA. The year has seen positive reviess with ESFA Bs well a5 a SAMA visit. The CEO and Chalr alse have regular
contact with the RSC as TWHF positions for future growth

&5 TWHF maintain & funcisanal matriz this allows Function Leads to manage angodng refationships with key suppliers as
appropriate depending on the nature of the service. The COO / CFOD, along with the Strategic Procurament Manager,
ensunes contracts are selected throwgh a fair process

Principals are responsible for engaging with thelr pupdl, parent and community populations and supported by Sector
Directors where needed and appropriate.

Engagerent across all the above areas is focused around ensuring the following communication outlets am wtilised as
part of TWHF communication strategy

. Newseners for school

+ Crowdcasts for various stakeholders

. Acadermy wehsiles 858 ComMmunicalan todl
« WLE

o Staff surseys and actions

« Media campaigns and links to local press

O~ Annual Repoart and Fenancial StRtemants - For (he vear ended T fapgust HDET
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Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

FINARCIAL REVIEW
Galng Cancern

After making appropriate enguiries, the board of trustess has a reascnable expectaticn that TWHF has adeguate
resources to continue in operational exdstence for the foreseeable future. The results for 2021122 resulted in 8 strong
surplus being recorded and a number of posithe steps were completed over the pericds Incleding varicus restrectures
The long range forecast is being continually assessed, particularly in light of the recent pay awards, and comective action
witll b= taken as needed. For reascns cutlired it continues to adopt the going concern basls in preparing the financial
slatements

Opeorational Finance Feview

Mot of TWHF incomae is obtalmed from the DFE wia the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants, the use af wihich is restricted
o particular punposes. The grants received fropn the DFE during the year emnded 31 August 2022 and the associated
expanditune are $hown as Restricted Funds in the Staterment of Financial Activithes

TWHF also receives grants for fived aszets from the DFE which are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as
restricted income In the Fixed Asset Fund. The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation

charges over the wseful life of the assets concerned. During the year TWHFE recardied a surplus of £10m as a8 result of
Imprevernant actions taken and a focus on cost and supply base.

The table below identifies a summary of the underlying operational performance for TWHF ignoning the impact of
penskon adjestrments and transfers infout during the peried.

Dperational View

2012 2o

E00Ds E'0D0s

income in Period 76,423 TS50
Expenditura Staff Costs 59,768 57156
Othar 15620 13782

Total 75174 70,958

operational management Profit / [loss) in period 1,035 G612
Capital funds movemant from curment and priod year incomme streams G573} 7]
Total Surplus including capital movements 662 4H5

Ap 3] August 2022 the net book value of fixed assets was 1650 4m and move ments in tangible fixed assets ane shown 8
note 17 to the financial staterments. The assets were used axclusively for providing education and the associated support
services to the puplls.

TWHF has taken on the deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme In respect of its non-teaching staff transferred
an corversion and adoption of such auset |lability from ather schools [eining TWHE, The presence of a pension deficit
does nob constitute an immediate lability as TWHF is required to account for benefits and liabilities over many years into
the future and |5 effectively undensritten by the government The deficlt s incorporated within the Staterment of
Firancial Activities with details in Mate 24 to the financial statements and the Board is confident that it can mest the
required contributions frem projected future operations.

T "Wt Heorl i e a tham
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Trustees’ Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Reserves Policy

The Trustees review the reserve levels of TWHF with a detalled review at the Finance Committee. This review
encampasses the nature of incorme and expenditure streams by regional location. the need 1o mateh mcome with
commitments and the nature of reserses. The Trustees take Inte consideration the future plans of TWHF, the uncertainty
over future incorme streams and other key rsks identified during the fisk review,

As previcusly communicated the level of reserves at the end of 31 August 2020 was a concern Steps dentified wene
implemented and TWHF have exited the year with a cumaulative surplus of £1.6m or 2.2% of income. The kong range plan
is far the reserves (o return to & position of 2% of Income over the coming three years so perfarmance st end of August
2022 s ahead of schedule. The concern going forward rests in o specific areas - pay awards and expacted pressures in
Breergy costs

Cazh balances nemain s$trong
imvestment Policy

During the coming year the Trustees will continue to review thie imestrment of free eserves and cash flow on a month to
mionth basis

PRIMCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Members and Truistees have implemented a systern to monibor risks that TWHF faces. especially in the cperaticnal
areas and in relation fo the control of finance. They have introduced systems. including operational procedunes and
internal financial controts. im order to minimise risk. Wihene significant fimancial risk still remains they have ensuned they
have adequate insurance cover

The principal risks and uncentainties facing TWHF are as follows which are monitored regularly at Executive and Trusiee
lervd

Educational - The risk centres on TWHF's ability to ensure that teaching and learning across all Key Stages and Early Years
are in line with. or above. naticnal standards. A detalled risk assessment s malntained for each school allowing for
focused action and sharing of best practice The Teaching and Leaming committee reviews detailed progress and reports
key rishs to the Fisk & Audlt committes.

Financial - TWHF has considerable rellance on continued Gowernmaent funding through the ESFA In the last year owver
5% of incoming resounces were ultimately Government funded snd whilst this level i expected to continue, thene i no
assurance that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the sama terms. The Teaching Staff and NIC pay
awards will put significant pressune on next years financial results, but we will cantinue (o review our codt base peeonding
to our ability to generate income. and match accordingly

TWHF prepare detalled manthly fnancial presentations for revlew at by the Finance Committee and Chair and also
engege posithaly with ESFA. TWHE Boand monitor performance against budgets and overall expenditure by means of
comparison of KPi's and ICFP benchmarks, The position for 21/22 [s far stronger and will continue to bulld showing the
impact of measures taken In these and ether schools In terrms of structunes and school Improvement

Regulation and Legislation risk arises from failure to effectively manage TWHFs finances and intermal controls in
comipliance with regulations nd legislation. The Trustees continug to revien and ensure that appropriate measures ang
in place to mitigate these risks including rellance on intemal Audit

Operational Functicns - Trustees monitor koy risks 0 areas of Estates. IT and HR on a regular basis Significant focus has
been seen in the year, on developing IT contrals with particular emphasls in the arca of Cyber and Infrastructure. While
suich risk will ahsays exist. the aim is o mitigate and ensune compansating contials ane in place whertver possible,

Strategy & Growth - the Trestees review TWHFS strategy on o regular basis and monitor its implementatban Due diligence
assessment and on boarding irmplications of new schools are also regularly reviewed and assessed

Thes Wit Horse Fedoratien
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Trustees Report

For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEMALF OF OTHERS

TWHF and its Trustees do not act as the Custodian Trustees of any other Charity.

STREAMLINED EMERGY AND CARBON REPORTING

Energy Backgreund

& large rultl academy trust with buildings of vandng ages and materaly. Heating across the trust sites s predorminantly
from maing gas. Some sites genarate electricity from solar panel arrays The academy trust wses minibus transportation,
ardl same members of staff elaim business milesge. Fos both the minibus ard business travel, the trust has recorded the
number of miles travalled during the year

This merthododogy follows the GHO Reporting Protocol and uses the 20@2 Covernment emissicn comversion factors for
greenhouse gas company reporting,

Energy Source

Gas - total KWh (kilowatt-
reours) used for the year

Electricity - total KWh wused

far the year

Gas Ol - 2300 lires used
far the year

wned Transport
Wini bus - 99,255 miles in
the yirar

Relmbursed Transpart -
total mileage reimbursed
frarm stalf clainns

= 164,923 milos

Tatal

Intensity ratio

Tha "Wt Horms Fad-ern1om

A Crrripadss Lrited I'_!_..' LU S e

|
| Emiasions calculation

Consumption ' Scops
10,711,686 KWh |gross OV Scopel  1QTINGBE kWh ® DIB254 {2022 fuels
tcalorific wvalue]) natural gas conversion factor gross
O to kg CO%)
= 195531 kgTode
= 1,855 tCO%e
& 561,296 KWh Scopel 4581296 KWh * Q15338 {2022 UK
electricity conwerslon factor to
kgCCHi] = BEB2.063 kgl Ote
= BEZ tCO%e
25 TO8 kwih Scopel 2300 litres " 275857 (2002 Fuels
Gas Ol corversion ta kgCOie)
= 5345 kgCOe
= 6545 tCO'e
99.253 miles * 149 (2022 SECR kwh Scopel 9055 mikes * Q37168 2022
pass & delivery vehs vans average) fredghiting goods vans average -
= 1LE 112 KWhH wsed i lieu of passenger vehicles
comarsion) = 36990 kgCO'e
= 56.99 tC04e
TEd O FE prviles * VIRTTO (2022 S5ECR Soope 3 164923 miles* 0277436 (2022

WWh pass & doliveny vehs, average
car comversion factor to KWh, petral)
=1892.297 KWh

15,610,391 kwWh

Ermissiang dats (HCOMe| cormpansd
with an appropriate business activity
ipupl numbers & per Autumn
cansus]

buginess travel and average car
corversian facior to kgCO%e, patral)
= 45 240 kgCO e

B G525 1COe

2,920 tC0%e
2020 tCO%N1.245 pupils

= 0260 tC0% per pupll

Arnaisl Feport @nd Financial SIalsrmeer
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Trustees' Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

MECLOSURE OF INFORMATION

UK Cresnhouse gas emisslons and energy use data | Current reporting year | Comparisen reporting year
for the period 1 Septembaer 2021 to 31 August 2022 | 202V 201920 (fgures are for

| lHustratlve purposes)
Enargy consurmption wsed to caboulate emisslions 15,635,099 14087175
LASY Y]

Scope 1 ermissions A metric tonnes COe

Cas consumption 1.855 1718
Cas Ofl consumption G 5
Crwmed transport 3T 26
Total Scopa 1 1,999 1750

Scope I emissions in metric tonnes OO

Purchased electricity Baz 847
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes COM

Business travel in employee owned vehicles ah 28
Total gross emisshons in metrc tonnes COPe Az rl 2726
Intensity ratio Tonnes CS0% per pupdl D260 G2ad

Quantification and reporting methodology

‘We have followed the 2008 HM Government Emvironmental Reporting Cuidelines. We have also used the GHG Reparting
Pratocol - Corparate Standard and have used the 2022 UK Covernment's Copversion Factoss far Company Reparting,

Intens| by measurement

The chosen INtensity measurernent ratio is total gross ermssSons in metric lonnes CO%e per pupil, the recommended ratio
for the sechar,

Meazures taken to improve energy efficiency

Devizes Secondary Schoal have neplaced oil bailers with gas
+  Haydon Wick Primary School have added a 20kw Solar PV array
« 5t Liske's Secondary Schoal have added a I0kw Salar P array
«  Full comversion ko LED lghting at:
Direwve Primany Sehool
Gorsa Hill Primary School
Jahm Madejaki Aesderny
The Ridgeway Secondary School

The White Harse Federation
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Trustees Report
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Promating the success of the charitable company

The success af the charitable company s maltntaimed through long termn strategie planning by the Bosrd of Trustess
thereby ensuring the needs of the stakeholders we sanve are baing met Every activity the Trust undertalies is directly
redated o erduning we deliver positive autcomes for our pupils and the wider community. When making decisions
Trustees considar the Impact on our stakeholder groups. as discussed in the prior sections regarding engagemant with
prmployess and engagerment with suppliers, customers, and others n & business relationship with thie Trust Trustees
rmake all decisions mindfully to ensure alignment with our educational purpose whilst ensuring we maintain high
standards of business eonduct, The Trustess are aklso mindful of the need to act faldrly in 1= declsion making for each of
eur schools and across the Trust Wi have complied with the requirements of 5172 of the Companies Act.

Disclosuro information to the Auditors
In 52 far as the Trustess are aware:
« Theme i no relesant audit information of which the charitable company's awditonrs are unaware: and

+ The Trustees have taken all Meps that they cught o have aken o make themselves awane of any melevant audit
inforrmatian and to establish that the auditors ane avsare of that information

The auditors. Bishop Flerming Bath Limited, are willing to continue in office and a resolution to appoint them will be
proposed at the annual general meating,

Trusteas report. incarporating a strategic report. approved by order of the board of trustoes. as company directors, an
Lo Decambotr WL 50 woned on the board's behalf by:

L Cibzon
Chair af Trustoss

E(- ‘j-"“_j-"—_____‘:'____._

Tha White Horse Federation
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Covernance Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2022

GOVERNMANCE STATEMENT
SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Trustees acknowledge they have overall responsibility for ensuring that TWHF has an effective and appropriate
system of contrel, fimancial and otherwise However, such a system s designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achiove business objectives, and can provide only reasanable and not abaolube assurance pgainst materdal
misstabement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day to day responsibility to the CEC, as Accounting Officer. for ensuring financial
controls conform with the reguirements of both proprety and good inancial managernent and iR sccordance with the
requirerments and responsibllities assigned to it in the funding agreement betwean TWHF and the Secretary of State for
Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Boasd of Trustees amy materal weaknesses or breakdowns in
internal control,

COVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Trusteses’
responsibilities staternent The Boand of Trustess has formally meet sis times during the yeas Attendance durng the year
at meatings of the board of trustees was as follows

Trusies Mestings attended Out of a possible
M Bechelt

M Capstick

5 Claverly

L Gibson

C Hopton {chalrwntll 067.22)
£ Haynes

M Laffey

H Lewis (ehair from OB 7.22)
C Maclend

L Pl

J Morton

B Powultan

E Spurrier

BT R T R e TS
fth h Hon v & v O D

in addition to the main scheduled Board and Commitiee meetings the Trustess support the senlor leadership as neaded
and durirg the year this was evident in suppor across a number of key areas Including strategic firancial planning
restructures. succession planning and adhoc meetings

The Finance Committes is a sub committee of the Board. The purpose of the Finance Committes is to ergure that the
standards of financial control and administration are adhered to, make fimancial plans Inclueding agreetng the draft
bBudget and longer range planning. and monitor the progress of incoma and expenditure. The Finance Committes has
formally met 4 tirmes during the year. Attendance at meetings In the year was as followes:

Trustes Meatings attendod Ot of a possible
E Spurrier - chalr of commities &
5 Clevarly 1
L Glsan .
K Paultan &
5 Haynies i

B o =

The purpose of the Risk and Audit Committes & to oversee the fimancial eporting process. including awdit. through the
year ard at year end. In sddition the Cammiiles cversess the intermal contral and rsk mansgement ramework for the
Federation. The Bk and Audit Committes kave formally met 5 Bmes during the year,

Tha Wiita Horse Federation

A Comparyy Limited by CGuaranibess
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GCovernance Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

Artencance at meetings in [he year was as Foltlcras:

Trustes Meetings attended out of a possible
C Hopton - chalr of committes (until 06.07.22) 5 5
M Bockett 5 5
B Lewis (from O8.07.22) 5 L
i Mackeod 5 5
S Cleverly 1 1

The purpose of the Teaching and Standards Cammitiee s to oversee and challenge the schools with assessrments and
attalnment ot each school and consider key risks and mitigation actions across the educational framewaork of the schools
in TWHF. The Teaching. Learming and Standands committee have farmally met 5 times during the year,

Attondance at meatings in the yoear was a follows:

Trusteo Mestings atbendod Out of a possible
J Morton - chalr of committes 5 5
i Capstick 5 5
L Cibsan 4 5
L Ml 5 5
K Poulton 5 5

The Pay and Remuneration Committes oversees all aspects of remuneration Including Teacher and Support pay awards
and evaluations and works closely with HR Director, In addition it alss oversees all senlos pay swards and performance
evaluations. The committes has meet formally threugh the perod and |s chalred by Mick Beckatt

Artendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trustes Meetings attendeod out of o possibie
M Beckett - chair of committae (from 03.02.22) F) <
5 Claverly i Fi
C Macheod - chair of committes {wntil 02.02.22) [ 1
J Morton L] L]
K. Poulton 1 1

The purpose of the Peoples Cosnmittes is to focus on employes engagement, performance evaluations. Benefits and
vl |- baing of stall. The Peoples committes have forrmally et & times during the year

Artendance at mestings 0 the year was as follows:

Trisiea Meetings atiended Out of a possible
M Beckett - chair of committes (froem 03,02 22) L &y
B Lowis 5 &
C Maclsod - chalr of comimittes (until 02.02 22} i i
L Ml 5 &
d Morton 3 iy

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL COMNTROL

The sysbern of intermal contrel & designed 1o manage fisk Bo a8 reasonabls level rather than to eliminate all fsk of faiune
bo achieve policles, aims and objectives. it can therefore only provide reasonable and not abdislute assurance of
effectiveness The systern al internal contral is based on an angoing process designied to identify and priositise the riska
o the achievernent of TWHF policles, alms and abectives. to evaluate the likelihcod of those risks being realised and the
impact should they be realised, and 1o manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The systern of internal
contred has been in place in TWHF throwghout the pariod of the signing of these accounts and during lockdown a
numbar of activities ware conducted virtually,

Thes 'White Horse Fedoration
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Covernance Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which TWHF |s exposed together with the operating, financial and
cormpllance contrals that kave been implemented o mitigate those risks. Given that there is no such thing as Zera risk’,
we et Risk appetite thresholds. and monitor and evaluate operational performance with those tolerances and set
correctivie actions accordingly. It s of the view that there is a formal angoing process fod identifying, evaluating and
managing TWHFs significant risks that has been in place for the year to 31 August 2022 and up bo the date of approval of
the anfisl report and financial statements This process is regularly revieswed by the Baard of Trustees

THE RISK AMND CONTROL FRAMEWORE

P& HFs oyitem of internal financial controd & based on a framework of regular management mformation and
administrative procedures Including the segregation of dutles and a systermn of delegation ard accountability. in
particular, 1t includes

«  Comprehensive budgeting and monitonng systers with an annual budget and periodic financial repofs which are
reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees

«  Regular revieas by the Finance Committes of reports which indicate financial perfarmance against the forecasts and
of major purchase plans. capltal works and expenditure programmes

«  Regular and comprehensive committee meetings with clear focus on Bk Managerment
Setting targets to measure financial and other perdformance;
Clearly defined purchasing lasset purchase or capital investment) guidedines:
Delegation of authaority and segregation of duthes:
Identification ard mansgement of rlaks

RSM act as Internal Auditors for TWHF and report reguiarly to the Risk & Avdit Committes. Their nale includes cammying out
audits on selected TWHF risk managerment policies and processas. On an annual basis. the internal awditor repaorts to the
Board of Trustees on the operation of the syterms of contrel and on the discharge of the Trustees' financisl
responsibilities. During the year the following internal Awdits were conducted

Speclal Educational Meads and Disability (SEN| Arrangaments
Secune ferabe Waorking Arrangements
Furlough processes and arrangemants
Financlal Controls with focus on Asset management
« Fallaw up ninioe

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

Ag Accounting Gfficer. the CEQ has responsibility for reviewang the effecthaeness of the systerm of internal contml. Durning
thi year in question the review has been informed by

The work of the internal awditor

« The work of the external auditors:
The financial management and govemance seli-assessment process,

+ The wirk of the executivie ranagens within TWHF wiho have responsibility for the dewslopment and maintenance of
thar internal control framework

The Accounting Cfficer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control
by the Finance Committes and & plan to address woaknesses and ensune continuaus improvement of the system s in
plach

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees orl® December 2022 and signed an (s behalf by
P Emiith T L Gibsan K}—-JIL_‘
Accounting Officer . \ Chair of Trastoes —

Arriual Beport and Financial Sialgenents - Fov the ypar anded 3T Ay
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

AS gCopunting pfficer of The White Horse Federation | have considened iy rE'E‘D'l:I‘"IE.lD"'E!r' | {8 ‘-"'G'llr':.' TWHF board of Trustees
and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material imegularity, impropriety ard mon-compliance with terms
and conditions of all funding recelved by TWHF, under the funding agreement In place between TWHF and the Secretany
of State for Education. As part of my consideration | have had dus regard to the quirerments of the Academy Trast
Handbook 2021,

| eanfirrm that | and TWHF board of Trustess are able to ity arvy matanial -IrE'g'..lla' OF IPMpIoODEr use af all furnds by
MWHF, or matarial non-complianco with the terms and conditiors of funding under TWHFs funding agreamont and the
.-"LIL&HE'I"'"I;' Trust Hanabool 2021

| eanfvrrm That no imstamnces of rmatenal IFreg LU |ar:[_I.-' ImproErely or fu r'Il'_1II'II'=|= mnon-campliance have been discovered to data
If any imstances are identified after the date of this staterment. these will be notified to the board of Trustess and ESFA

D Surtl

P Smith
Accounting Officer

Crate ,é DLU-/"\‘DE/ QoL

Thee White Horie Federation
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities
For the year ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law] ane resporsible for
preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Acsdemies Accounts Direction
published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accountimg Standards {United Kingdom
Cererally Accepted Acoounting Practice) and appléicable law and reguiations

Company law regquines the Trustees to prepare financial staterments for each financial year, Under company law, the
Trusteas miust fat appreve the financial staterments unless they are satisfied that they give a true and falrview of the state
of affairs of the charitable company and of its Incoming resources and application of resources, including ity income and
expenditure, for that pericd. In preparng these financial statements. thie Trustees are regquined to

+ Select sultable accounting policies and then apply therm consistanthy,

« Qipsenag the methods and principles of the Charities S0RP 2019 and the Acedemies Accounts Direction 2021 1o 2022

+ Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonabile and prudent;

+ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have bean followed, subject to any matorial deparures distlosed
and explaimed in the financial staternents:
Fropame the financial statemants on the golng concern basis unless it is Inapproprate to presume that the chantable
company will continue in business,

The Trustees aré responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explain the
charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reazonable accuracy at amy time the financual positicn of the
charitable company and enable them 1o ensune that the financial staterments comply with the Companles Act 2006
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking réasoniable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularsities

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and
other cantrals which confarm with the requiremments both of propriety and of good financial management They are alsa
responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFASDFE have boen appliod for the purposes intonded

Thie Tnistess are respansibie for the maintenance and integrity of the carporate and financial information included on
the chafitable company's webslte. Legislation n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial staterments may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Appreved by order of the memibers of the Board of Trustees and signed on its behalf by

L

L Glbsan
Chair of Trustees

Date ) o Dererver Lo
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation

OPIHION

Wwie have sudited the financial staterments of The White Horse Federation (the ‘acadery’ ard TWHF] for the year ended
B Avigust 2022 which comaprise the Statemant of fnancial activities. the balance shaet, the statement of cash floes and
the related notes, including a summary of significant secounting policies. The financial reporting frameweark that has
been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Hingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Fimancial Reporting Standard
applicabla in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charities S0RP 2008 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to
2022 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

I our apinian the financial statemants:

« Ghve a trae and fale wows of the state of TWHFS alfairs as ar 31 August 2022 and of s incoming resouwrces and application
of resouwrces. including its income and expenditure for the year then ended!

= Have been properly prepared in sccardance with United Bingdom Cenarally Accepted Accounting Practice and

« Have been prepared in accordance with the requirernents of the Companias Act 2006 the Charities SORP 2019 and tha
Academbes Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 [ssued by the Educatson and Skills Funding Agency.

BASIS FOR OPIMION

We conduc bed our audit In sccoddance with International Standards on Auditing (UK] (1545 (UH )} and applicable law, Cur
responsibilibes under those standards are further described in the Awditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
staterments section of our report. We are independent of TWHF In sccordance with the ethical requirements that ane
ralevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdam, including the Financial Reporing Councils
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirerments We
believe that the audit evidence we hayve obtalned i suffickent and appropriate to provide & basis for our apinion

COMOLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

In auditing the finarcisl stalerments we have concleded that the Trustess uie of the gaing concenn Dasis of aocourting
in the preparation of the finencial statements is appropriate

Based on the worlk wa have parformed. we have not identified any matenal uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually e cellectively, may cast significant doubt on TWHFs abdity to continue as o going concern for o period
of at [east bwelve manths fram when the financial statements are authorised for issua

Our respons:bilities ard the responsibilities of the Trustoes with nespect to going concerm ang described in the relovant
sections of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the information inchuded in the anmuial report other than the financial statements and
our auditars’ report tharean. The Trustows are responsible for the other information contained within the annwal repart
Our opinlon on the financial staterments does not cover the other information and. except to the extent othenwise
explicitly stated in aur report, we do not express any form af esurance canclusion therean Our responsibility s te read
the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materlally inconsistent with the
financial statermenls or our knewledge obtained in the course af the sudil or othervize appears to be materdally
milsstated. II'we identily such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents we are required to determine
whether this gives rise 1o 8 material mizstaterment in the financial slatements themselved IF Based on the waork we have
performed. wo concluda that there is & material misstatermant of this other infarmation. we ane risquined o report that
fact

We have rothing to report in this regard

The Wit Horss Federation
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation [continued)

DFIMION ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT Z00E6
i our openion based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« The Informaton geen in the Trustees' report Including the Strategic report for the financial year for which the financial
staterments are prepared i3 consistent with the financial statements
« The Trustees' report and the Strateglc report have been preparad in accordance with applicable legal reguirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

I tne light of our knowledge and understanding of TWHF and its environment cbtained in the couse of the audit wo
have not Wentifed material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report,

Wwip have nothing to report in espect of the following mattors in selation toowhich the Companies Act 2006 requines us
to report tovou If. In our oplnlon:

- Adequate accounting records have not been kept or retums adeguate for cur audit have not been recened from
branchars not visited by us or

= The fimancial statements ane not in agreement with the accounting records and returms; or

« Certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« We have not received all the infarmation and explanations we reguire for our audit.

RESPOMNSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES'

A5 explained more fully in the Trustess responsibilitivs statement. the Trustess (who are also the directors of TWHE far
the purpases af cormpany law] are responsible for the preparation of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. and for such internal control as the Trestees determine s necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from matednal misstatemant. wihesther due to fraud of eror.

In prepatding the financial staterments the Trustees are reaponsible for assessing TWHFs ability to continue as a gaing
concem. disclkosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the golng concern bakis of accounting
urless the Trusteas elther intend to liguidate TWHF of o cease operations or have no realistic alternative bt to da 5o,

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O objectives are mo obfain reasonable assurance about whether the financal staterments as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether dwe to frawd or error, and bo Mswe an suditors’ repart that includes our opinion.
Reascnable assurance |5 a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with
ISas (LK) will always detect a maberial misstaternent when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or eror and ade
considered materdal i individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influgnce the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

irregularities. including fraud, & instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line
with our respomsibilities. outlined above, o detect material misstaterments in respect of irregularities, including frawd Tha
extent bo which aur procedures are capable of detecting rregularities, including frawd s detalled below

i identifing and asessing risks of matedal misstaterment in respect of Irmegulantles, Including fraud and
nan-campliance with lavws and regulations. we cornsidered the follewing

Thie rature of TWHF sectar, control emaronment and TWHFs pertmmame.

- Results of our enguiries of management and the Trustee boand. Including the committess charged with governance
oer TWHFs fimance and contrgl, abowt their ovwen identification and assessment of the risks of irnegulanities:

Thie Wit n Heoeta Faerd weatbesn
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation (continued)

« Ay matiers we identified having obtained and reviewed TWHFs documaentation of thelr policies and procedurnes
relating to: identifying. evaluating amd complying with laws and regulations snd whether they were aware of any
instances of non-compiiance; detecting and responding te the risks of fraud and whaother thoy have knowledge of any
actual suspected or alleged fraud: the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or noncompliance with

laws and regulations:

« How TWHF ensured it miet its obligations arising from it being financed by the ESFA and other funders. and as such
material campliancs with thess abllgatians i requined oo ensom TWHE will continuee ta recebve s public fursding and
be authorised to operate. including around ensuring therm is no material unauthorised wse of funds and sxpenditung

« How TWHF ensured it met its obligations to its principal regulator, the Secretary of State for Education: and

= The matters discussed among the audit engagement team and Irvolving relevant intermal Academy specialists
regarding how and whers fraud maght coour i the inancial staternents and any potential Indicators of fraud.

As & result of these procedures. we considered the oppontunities and Incentives that may exist withln the coganisation for
fraud, which included incorrect recognition of redsenue. management override of controls wsing manual journal entnies,
procurement and pagmall 'We dentified the greatest pobential for frawd as incorect recognition of reverue and
mandgement cvaride using manual journal entries

in common with all audits under 1585 UKL we are alo requined to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. We also obtalined an understanding of the legal and regulatory frarmeworks that TWHF cperates
Im. fecusing on provisians of those laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determdnation of material armounts
ard disclosures in the financial statements. The key laws and regulaticns we corsidered In this context included the
Academies Accounts Direction, Acaderny Trust Handboaok, UK Companies Act and tax legislation.

in additian, we conssdensd provisions of ather lees and regulations that de nat have a direct elfect an the financial
staterments but comiplance with which may be fundamental to TWHFs ability to operate or to avoid a material panalty
These included saleguarding regulations, data pratection regulstions, eccupational health and safery regulations
edugation and inspections legisiation. building legistation and employment legislation

Ouir procedures o respond to risks ientified included the following:

= Reviewang the financid staterment disclosures and testing o supporting documentation (o aswss comphance with
provisions of relevant lwews and regulations described as having a direct effect on the fimancial statements;

«  Heviewing the financial staterment diaclosures and Tesiing 10 SLDHParting doclimentation 1o assess the reCogrthan of
TEVRNLIE

Enguiring of Trustees and management and those chamged with governance concerning actual and potentisl
fthgatkon and clalms:

«  Performming procedures to confirm material comphance with the reguimmenis of its regulators:

- Performing analytical procedures to identify amy wWnusual or ynexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
rmaterial misstaterment due 1o fraud,

Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with govarmance and reviewing intermal contral reparts; and
« In sddressing the risk of fraud through management cvarride of controls testing the appropratensss of journal entries

and othar adiustmsnts: and astessing whether the judgements made in making sccounting estimates are indicatiwe
of a potential bias

Annual Fepat and Financial Stdtementt - For the wear endesd 51 August 2022
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Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
to the Members of The White Horse Federation (continued)

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks o all engagement team
members, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or nen-compliance with lews and regulations throughout the
audit

Our audit procedures were deshgned to respond to risks of matenal misstatement in the financial statements,
recogniging that tha risk of not detecting 8 material misstatement due te freud s higher than the rsk of not detecting
ome resulting from an error. as fraud may imvodve deliberate concealment by. for example, forgeny. misreprosentations or
through callusion Thede are inherent limitations In the awdit procedures performed and the further removed
rar-comipliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. the
lass likeky we would become awane of it

A further deseription of our responsibilithes for the audit of the financial statements & located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www. frc org ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ repart.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to TWHPs Members, as a body. In accordance with Chapter I of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006, Our audit work has been undertaken sothat we might state ta TWHFs Mermbers those matiers we are requined to
state to them in an awditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest eatent parmitted by law, wa oo Not acoept of
assurme responsibility to anyone other than TWHF and its Mermbers, as & body, for cur awdit work, for this report, or for the
opinlans we have formed.

My

Slmen Morrisan FCA (senlor statutery auditor]
for and on behalf of

Bishop Fleming Bath Limited
Chartened Accountantis
Sratutory Auditors

10 Temple Back

Bristal

851 6FL
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity
to The White Horse Federation and The Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the tenms of our engagemsent letter dated 4 October 2007 and further 1o the requirements of the
Education and Skills Funding Agency [ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Dhrection 2021 to 2022, we have
carried out an engagement 1o ebiain imited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received
by The White Horse Foderation during the year 1 Septembar 2031 to 31 August 2022 have boen applied to the purposes
identified by Parlisment and the financlal transactions conform to the authoritles which govern them

This report s made solefy po The White Horse Federation and ESFA In accordance with the terms of our engagement
tetter, Our vaork has beon undertaken 5o that we might state to The White Horse Federation and ESFA those mattors we
ane required to state n & repon and for no cther purpose. Ta the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not socept of
assume esponsibility to anyone othar than The White Horse Federation and ESFA, for our work. for this report. ar for the
conclusion wea have formed,

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE WHITE HORSE FEDERATION'S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE REPORTING
ACCOUNTANT

The accounting officer & responsible, under the requinements of The White Home Federation’s funding agreerment with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 July 2012 and the Acadermy Trust Handbook, extant from | Septermber 2021,
ot ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parlipment and the
financial transactions conform to the authosities which govern thiem

Chur responsibilities for this engagerment are established n the United Hingdomn by our prafesshon's ethical guidamnce and
are o obtain Emibed assurance and repart in accordance with owr engagerment letter and the mequiregmants of the
Academbes Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022, We report bo you whether amthing has come to our attention n caming
Gl our work which suggests that in all material respects. expenditure disbursed and income recehved during the year 1
Septermber 2021 to 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do nat cenform to the authorities which govemn them

APPROACH

We conducted our engagement in accardance with the Framewark and Guide for External Auditars and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA We performed a bmited assurance ongagement as defined in our
angagement katter.

The objecthe of a lmited assurance engagement s to perorm such procedures as (o oblain formation and
explanations in onder to provide us wath sufficient appropriate evidence to ppress a negative conclusion on regularity

A limited assurance esngagement is mone limited 0 scope than a masonable assurance engagement and consogquaenthy
dioes not enable s 1o obtaln assurance that we would becorme aware of all significant matters that might be identified
in & reasonablo psurance engagement Accardingly, we do not pxpress a potitive opinion

DU engagerment includes examination, on 8 test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of TWHFS
Imcome and expenditure

Our work on regularity Incleded a review of the internal contrals policies and procedunes that have been implemented
ard an assessment af thelr design and effectiveness to understand bow TWHF complied with the framework of
authorities. \We also reviewed the reports commissioned by the trustees to assess the internal contreds throwughout the

year.

we performed detalled testing based on owr assessrment of the ok of matedal reguladty, impropslety and
pon-campliance, This work wis integrabed with our audit on the inancial statements where appropriate and included
analytical review and detalled substantive testing of transactions

Anrmual Beport and Fnancial Statermsents - For the yoar encled T




Independent Reporting Accountant’'s Assurance Report on Regularity
to The White Horse Federation and The Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

COMNCLUSION

in the course of our work. nothing has come o ocur attention which suggest in afl material respects the cxpenditure
disbursed and income recenved during the year | September 2021 to 31 August 2022 has nol been applied o purposas
imtended by Pardiament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authonties which gowemn them

g@"\f‘%g&ﬂ- o

Reporting Accountant
Bishop Fleming Bath Limited
Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

I0 Temple Back

Bnstol

BS51 BFl
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Statement Of Financial Activities

(Incorporating Income and Expenditure Account)

For the year ended 31 August 2022

Unrestricted
funds
T0Z2
Note 3
Income from:
Canations and
capital grants: 3
Other donations
and capital grants B56, TG
Gther trading acthvities & 570,584
Investmanks 7 B
Charitable activities [ 3,078,732
Teaching schogis
Total incorme & 096, 934
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities 3077393
Teaching schools -
Total expenditure 5.0017.353
HET INCOME /
|[EXPENDMTURE) 1079 54541
Transfers between funds 20 g
HET MOVEMENT
BEFORE OTHER
CAINS / [LOSSES) 1.0°7TS, 541
Actuaral galns [ [losses) on
DB pension schames Fd -
ket movement in funds 1,078,541
Total funds brought forward
as previously staned 567925
Prior year ad|ustrment 1]
Totad funds Braught
forward as restated 567925
Bt rraverment in Funds 1,073 541
Total funds carrled forward 1647 466

Restricted
2022

T34T0457

T ATO 5T

79,128,659

79,128,659

(5,658,182}

(&1E1EE)

16.0°71.568)

46,185,000

40,111,632

{62, £30.595)

(%1.220.593)
£0,170,632
(2108981

The notes on pages 30 to 65 form part of these financial statemenis

The White Home Federation

A Coimyparry Lt Dy Cusmnins

252,730

L15E. T30

6,088,458

6,088,458

(3,935,728}

H15186

(3522 .542)

(3.522,542)

123,075,695

21,596,170

T4, 671,065
[3.522.542)
161,149,325

Total
funds
2022

2,799,454

Te, 548,185

T TI0 N

BE. R4 400

BB 254 490

(8,514,369)

(8,514, 369)

6183, 000

37,668,631

BY&25 027

21,586,170

103,018,197

A5 restated
Total

Furds

2020

E

1651200
Erdalelt
B4
FLIS00S
B.956

BE.&56457

TRI70.583
B354

P65

EOR5.200

B 9ob 200

(TLES3.000)

[2157°796)

97 435858

ATELAES

105156 955
57, Tenk)

10308197
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Balance Sheet
As at 3 August 2022

Fixed assets

Tangitile assats

Current assets

Debtors

Cash at bank ard in hand
Creditors: amownits falling

duse within ang year

Het cufrent assets

Total assets less current Habilities

Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year

Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined benefit pension scheme llability
Total net assets

Funds of the Academy

Restricted funds;

Fixed asset funcs

Restricted incarme funds

Restricted hunds encluding pension asset
PEnsion resens

Tetal restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds

Total funds

15

28

20

20

20

20

20

o8

L.78 583

T.509,164

10,307,727

[7.476.613)

141,145 32X

261039

161,410,362

(2,370,000

202

140,555,928

289114
163,527,042
Na9.24)
143057828

(Z.370,000)

140,687 828

139040362
1L6&T 466

140687 628

20

2847671

4 938456

T.TBBAZ7

5 SBEED5)

14 57, BES

2ED 607

Ty, ot 272

(42 510,00

#As restared
F021
£

143505 78

P el p iV
15,800, BOD
127.808)
145.529197

[42.510,000)

102,018197

102451272
bR P

10801997

The fimancial staternents on pages 27 (o 65 were approved and authorised for issue by the Trusiees and are signed on

thir ba=ball by
L Gibson

Chair of Trustees ] : 5

Cate Lo Qzcemor Lo

Tha White Horie Federation

& Company Limited by Guanntes

-
e

The notés on pages 30 to 65 farm part of these financial statements
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 August 2022

Mote
Cash flows from operating activities
Wit cash provided by opeating actlvites &
iCazh flows from Investing activitles 24
iCazh flows fram financing activitles 23
Change in cash and cash equivalents in Lhe yesr
Cash and chab eguivalents at the beginning of the year
Caszh and cash equivalents ot the end of the year 25. 26

Thie nates on pages 30 to 65 form part of these financial statements

Thi White Home Federation

A Compary Limited by Cuarantoe

20

3725459
(793.852)
[278.919)

1.650,688

4,938,456

7589144

s restated
2021
E

1,641 BS54
N67.088)
[318.449)

1516312
3422144

& 958 456
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022

1 ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES

A sumnmary of the principal acceunting policles adopted |which have been applied consistontly. except whihs
rated ], judgments and key sources of estimation uncertalnty. is set out beboe,

1.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial staterments of TWHF, which = 8 public berefit entity under FRS 102 have been prepared under
the historlc cost comvention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standand Applicable in the UK and
Republic of ineland (FRS 102) the Accounting and Reparting by Charities: Statemnent of Recommended Practice
applicable to charlties preparing thelr acoounts in accordance with the Financial Reposting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of Ineland (FRS 102) iCharities SORP (FRS 102]1 the Acadermies Acesurnts Déection 2021
o 20ZF Issued by ESFA. the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006

The White Horse Federation meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FR5102
1.2 GOING CONCERM

The Trustees assess whether the use of going comcemn s appropriate e whether there are any material
uncertainties related o events or conditions that may cast signifcant doubt on the ability of TWHF to continue
as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a partod of at least one year from the date
of autharisation for lssue of the financial staternents and have concluded that TWHF has adequate resources
and cash to contirue in operational existence for the forsseeable future and there are na material uncertaintics
about TWHFs abllity to continue as a golng concermn.

The on boarding of schaods with significant financial lssues and deficits. allied with general growth on of TWHF
and rational funding constraints. has placed a substantial strain an the lesel of ree reserves, and this remains a
kiey focus for Trustees n the coming wear. Tumarcund of these schools will take tine (typically three plus years)
but a number of initiatives are undenway to drive increased resend levels and these are at the forefront of SLT
and committes meetings. The impact of Cloucester Academy leaving TWHF has rmeant that TWHF has had
to absarb the historic deficit belonging to that Academy. placing further stram on reserves, albeit this relieves

ongoing budgetarny pressure going forswvard

At 51 August 2062 the lewel of free reserses (boing unrestrictad funds and Caneral Annual Grant) was E1.647 4668
see MNota 20, and the Trustees consider this is a moderate, albeit positive, lewel, Under the regquirerments of the
Acadernmy Trust Handbook tha Trust is regalined to malntaln positive free reserves at all times and this (s a key
balance that is closely monitored. In undertaking thelr assessment of free reserves the following have been
considered:

= Assessing impact of recent pay awands and energy cost rises together with funding announced in 2022
Autumn staternent.

« Cost cutting and budget improvement measunes to improve the financial position

« Budget forecasts and cashilows which project TWHF continuing to operate without any further reducton in
frae resands

- Review of post vear end management accounts which show iImprevement in the resenes position

- Closs and regular scruting of the budgetary position by management and Trustees, including the impact of
thi angoing Covid 19 pandemic

- Regulator dialogue with the ESFA around the current financial position and outleck. mantaining full
transparency.

= It 15 also moted that whilst free reserves are under stralm cash flow rernains stromg due to the working capetal
cycle and cagital funding streams,

Based an the above sssessrment the Trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparting the financial staterments

Thes Wit Horse Federstion

& Corriparny Lifdie |‘_'.'| i e i Ml
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1 ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES [continued)

.3

1%

INCOME

All Imcoming resources are recognised when TWHF has entitlernent to the funds. the recelpt = probable and
the armount can be measured reliably

Cramis

Granis are included in the staterment of fimancial activities on a receivabie bass The balance of income receied
for specilic purposes but not expended during the pericd is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet
Wherne incorme is received In advance of meeting any performance related conditions there 5 not uncendithonal
entitlerment to the income and its recognition & defermed and included in creditors as deferred incoma until the
performance melated conditions are met Where entitlernent occurs before Income s received., the income (s
accrued

Ceneral Annual Crant is recognised in full in the statement of fimancial activities in the year for which it is
recaivable and any abatement In respect of the year s deducted from Income and recognised as a lability,

Capltal grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditicnal entitiernent o the grant Unspent
amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fived asset fund, Capital grants
are recognised when there s entltiement and are not deferred over the life of the assat on which they are
expended.

Denations
Danations are recognised an a receivable basis where there are no performance related conditions) whene the
receipt is probable and the amount can be rellably rreasured,

Other income
Other income. including the hire of facilitios. is recognisad in the year it i ecehable and to the extent TWHF
has provided the goods or sendces

EXPENDITURE

Expenditune is recognised once thene i5 a legal or constnective abligation (o transfer economic benafit to a thad
party. it s probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
ocbligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up
ol the total of direct costs and shared casts, including support costs imvaleed in undertaking esch pethdity, Dinect
costs attributable to a single activity ame allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
tham ome activity and suppart costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activitios on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs ane allocated on the basis of tme
spent. and depreciation changes allpcated on the portion of the asset's use,

Charltable activities

Thest arg costs incurred on TWHEs educational aperations. Incleding support costs and costs relating o the
govermnance of TWHF apportioned ba charitable activitles

All resources expended ame Inclusive of irrecoverable VAT

INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Interest on funds beld on depoesit s included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by

TWHF, this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payabile by the institution with whom the funds
are deposived

Theo Whdto Haoree Fe-dorabion

iy, ooyl
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued]
1.6 TAKATION

TWHF s considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule & of the Finapce Act 2010 and therefore
it meets the definition of 8 charltable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, TWHF i potentially exempt from taxation (n respect of income or capltal gains receved within
categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of
Chargesble Gairns Act 1992, (o the extent that such Incame of galns are applled exclusively to charitable

PUFROSES.
1.7 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets costing £1.000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost. net of depreciation
and any provisien for Impatrment

‘Where tamgible fixed assets have been acquired with the ald of specific grants, elther from the government
or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic |ife. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued
use of the asset. the related grants are credited to a restricted fived asset fund in the statement of financial
activities and caried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to
the restricted fixed asset fund in the statemaent of inancial activities Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreclaticn on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation s provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at
rates calculated to write off the cost of esch asset on a straight line basis ever its expected wseful life. as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Freehald praperty straight line over 50 years
Long term loasehold land straight line ovar 125 years
Leng tenm leasehld property straight line over 50 years
Furmniture and equipment straight ling ovar S years
Camputer equlprment straight line over 3 years
Maotor vehicles straight line over 5 years

A review for impairment of a ficed asset s carmed owt if events or changes in circurmrstances indicate that the
carmylng value of ary fixed asset may rot be recoverable Shortfalls between the canying valiee of fixed assels and
their recoverable amounts ane recognised a8 Impairments. impairrment lcases sre recognised in the staternent of
fimarcial activities.

Lard and bulldings cccupled under a Church Supplemental Agreement are not recognised as assets in the
balance sheet, These land and bulldings are occupied free of charge under 8 rolling two year licence from the
landowner. Due (o the specialised nature of these land and bulldings it is not considered practical to place a
value of the notianal rent denated by the landownor

This White Horeo Fedoration
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1 ACCOUMTING POLICIES [continuwed

LB INVESTMENTS
Fixed asset investrments are a form of financial instrument and are initially recognised at their tramsaction cost
and subsequently measured at fair value at the balance sheet date, unless the value cannol be measured
rellably im which case |t is measured at cost less impairment Investment gains and losses, whether realised
or unrealised, are combined and presented as ‘Cains[Losses]) on investments’ in the staterment of firmncial
activitles.

Imvestrnents in subsidiares are valued at cost less provision for lmpalement
L9 DEBTORS

Trade and other debtors with no stated |Interest rate and due within ome year ame recorded at the amount of the
cash or other consideration expected to be recoived, Prepayrments ang valued at the smount paid

110 CASH AT BAME AND IN HAND

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short term highly liquid irvestrments with a short maturity of three
rmuznths or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the depasit or similar account

1N LIABILITIES

Liabliities are recognised when there |5 an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event. it s
probabde that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settherment, and the armount of the settlerment
can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are mcognised at the amount that TWHF anticipates it will pay to settle
the debt or the armount it has recelved & sdvanced payments for the goods or services it must provide

112 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

TWHF anly halds basic inancial instruments as defined in FRS 102 The financial assets and financial [Eabilitles
of TWHF and their measumement bases ane a5 follows

Financial assats - trade and other deblors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measuned
at amortised cost as detailed In note 16, Prepayments are not financial instruments. Armounts due (o TWHPs
whally owned subsidiany are held at face value less any impairrment Cash at bank B classified as a basic
financial Irstrument and s reeasured at face value.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial imstrument and is measured at face valuee,

Financial liabilitles - trade creditors, accruals and cther croditon are financial instruments. and are measured
at amartised cost as detailed in rotes 17 and 18 Taxation and sacial securty are not included in the fnancial
instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is ot deemed to be a financiad liakility, as the cash
sgitlerment has already taken place and there (s an obligation o deliver services rather than cash or another
financial instrument. Amounts due o TWHFs wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any
irmpairmnent.

113 OPERATING LEASES

Rantals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of financial activities on a straight fine basis
over the laase e

The White Horse Federation

& Company Limited by Cuannies
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

1

Tha Whits Horse Federation

ACCOUMTING POLICIES [continued )

1.0

LG

PEMSIOMNS

Retiremaent benafits to employees of TWHF are provided by the Teachans' Pension Schema ["TRS®) and the Local
Covernment Pension Scheme ("LCPS") Thewe are defined benafit schermes.

The TPS s an unfunded schame and contributons are calewated so as bo spread the cost of pensions over
emplopess working lives with TWHF in such a way that the pension cost s 2 substantially level percentags of
current ared future pensionable payrall The contributions are determined by the Covernrment Actuary on the
basi of quadronnial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TRS is an unfunded multi-employer
scheme with no underlying assels (o assign bebween employers. Consequently. the TPS & treated as a defined
cantribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognisad in the pariod to which they
relate.

The LGRS |s a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from these of TWHFE n
separate trustee administered funds, Pension schemea assets are measured at falr value and fHabilities ane
rsEasured on an actuarkal basls using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate eguivalent o
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalént term and currency to the liabilities
The actuarial valuations are obtalned at least trbennlally and are updated at each balance sheet date The
amounts charged to operating surplus are the current sorvice costs and the costs of scheme Introductions,
benefit changes, setilernents and curtailments. They are included as pan of staff costs as incurred. Met
interest on the net defined benefit liabilitylasset i5 also recognised in the statement of finrancial activities
and comprises the Interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets,
caloutated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme ptets at the beginning of the period by the rate used
to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assels and
thee setiial feturm on the sehoe as4ats s recogniied in other recognied galns and betes

Actuarial gains and loses are recognised immedistoly in other recognised gains and losses

ACENCY ARRANCEMENTS

TWHF acts as an agent in distributing 16 - 19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments recelved from EFA and
subsoguent disbursements to students arg excluded from the Statement of Financial Activities as TWHF does
nat have control over the charitable application of the Funds. TWHF can use up to 5% of the allocation towards
its awvn adminigtration costs and this & recognised in the Staterment of Financial Activities. The funds receied
pald ard any balances hebd at year end are disclosed in note 32

FUND ACCOUMNTING

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of TWHF at the discretion of the Trusbiees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resaurces which are 1o be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
funders where the asset acguired or created is held for a specific purpose

Aestricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds recelved with restrictions imposed by the
funderfdonar and inclede grants fram the Departrrent for Education Croup.

Investrrsent Incomna, gains and losses ane allocated to the appropriate fund

Annual Report and Financial Statermenti - For e peas
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

i ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued
LT PFl AGREEMENT

The Moredon Primany School occupies buildings which are sutject to a PFl agreement. TWHF pays revenue
contributions In respect of facilities management. The contract will expire in 2030, TWHF does not have any
rights or obligations of ownership in respect of these assets, and therefore thay are not included on TWHFs
Balance sheet The revenue payment for service s included in the Swatement af Financlal Activithes,

X CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND AREAS OF JUDCGMENT

Estirmates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors;
including expectations of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimnates and assumptions:

TWHF makes estimates and assumptions concerning the fulure. The resulting acoounting estirmates and
sisumptions will, by definition. seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrment to the carrying amounts of assets and [lakdlithes within
the pit financial year are discussed below

The present value of the Local Covernment Pension Schame defined benefit lability depends on a number
of factors that are determired on an actuarial basis wsing a varety of assumptions. The assemptions used n
deterrnining the net cost of income for pensions include the discount rate, Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed In note 28, will impact the carmying amount of the pension liabllity. Furthesmaore a roll
forward approach which prajects resulis fram the latest full sctuarial valustion perforrmed at 31 March 2005
has bean used by the actuary in valuing the pensions labdlity at 31 August 2022, Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and & full sctuaral valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension kability

Critical areas of judgmont:

TWHF obtairs use of fixed assets as a lessee. The classification of such leases as operating or finance lease
requires TWHF to determine, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions af the arrangaments,
whether it retaing or acquires the ssgnificant risks and rewards of cwnership of these assets and accordingly
whather the lease reguires an asset and llabillty to be recognized |n the Balance Shest,

The White Horss Federation

& Company Linmrted by Cuaranbpg
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

3 INCOME FROM DOMATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted As restated

Unrestricted Restricted fined asset Total Teotal

funds funds funds funds funds

2022 2022 2022 2022 20

£ £ i £ E

Froesd Asset Donaticn - 16 260,000

Danaticns G4 70 B&E,TOL 12THE

Capitsd Crants 2152.730 2,152,730 2M7 380

TOTAL 2022 G, 70 2152730 2,799,434 16516200
TOTAL FUNDS las restated) 2021 151680 300,632 16.0E1.889 16514201

4 IHCOME FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES

uUnrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

202 1022 20232 203

£ £ L £

Educatian 2,705 13X 7364635 778 76,238,352 e85 aT

Support to other schools 1,848 37229 130,077 168.560

Letsure facilities 17LTeED - 17LTE0 BEITE

TOTAL 2022 IO7ETEL FELTOLST 76,549,185 T80 706
TOTAL 2031 2515 500 ES2TTA00 T.790, 704

The White bore Federatian

& Cormpany Limited by Cuaraniee
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

5 FUNDING FOR TWHF'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted Restrictod Total Total
funds funds funds funds
EDUCATION 2022 2022 1022 2021
i £ 3 E
DFE/ESFA AND OTHER GRAMNTS
General Annual Grant [SAG) . 58,136 663 58.136,663 SiE52 048
OTHER DFE/ESFA GRANTS .
Pupil Premium ZNETET 3.018. 767 289037
UIFSM Ora 559 928,559 1M 135
Teazhers Pay & Poersion Crant 207165 307,164 2678351
Other DFE/ESFA Grants 1.FO6GTE 1,706,678 oooDe09
64097831 64,007 83 B1 400514
OTHER GOVERNMENT GRANTS
High MNpeds B04E RO0D G095 800 500 984
Early Years Funding 1L4&B3911 158397 1.558 006
Other government gramnts 256 Saf 2156562 BE0IS0
148397 B250.243 0,754,258 2335140
Other income from TWHFs educational operations L3M.2E3 552828 1844, 041 TG
COVID-19 ADDITIOMNAL FUNDING [DFE/ESFA)
Catch-up Premium 683G 60836 g aan
Recovery Bremium B50287 550,287
Mass Tasting Grant 119258 ne.2s=9
Vaccinaticn Srant IDERY lo.6as
L8705 487,051 891 880
COVID-19 ADDITIONAL FUNDING (NONDFE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Job Retenton Scheme grant - e
COMF AL 75176
- 15176 Lty 720
2.795.124 ThLLAT 228 76,238 552 71555971
2785124 ThLLR228 76,238 352 71555871
TOTAL 202 2BR5.722 B2 8205 7155397

The White Hore Federation
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

& INCOME FROM OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Lettings

Liniferm Sakies

TOTAL 20621

T INVESTMENT INCOME

Bank interes

TOTAL 2021

,: ﬁa

Tha Wihite Horse Federation
& Company Limited by Cusmntos

Unrestricted
funds

2022

E

241210
20374

37058,

a2 Q0%

Unrestricbed
funds
Pl

H&

L E

Total
funds
2022

361 200

20T

370,584

142,005

Total
funds
20T

4

591

Total
funcds
Faerd |

152 {15

152 003

Total
funds
2021

5a35

Anriaal Bepor ahd Fnancisl Staterments - For the year anced 51 Suqust 2022 14




Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

il EXPENRITURE

Staff Costs Premises
2022 2022
3 E
EDUCATION
Dinpet costs 54,091,950 ETRG 485
Allecared Suppart costs 1D BT &6 & BOG 962
SUPPORT TOOTHER SCHOOLS
Direct costs
Allccated Support costs
LEISURE FACILITIES:
Direct costs LT 754
allocated Support costs 4637
Teaching School
TOTAL 2022 &5.065118 B.567.072
TOTAL 2020 E1L100 B B0 2457

The Wihite Horse Federation

& Lo BTy Lirmufesd oy Laesranibps

Cther

452031

TOLOTT RS

Lo

218

14,704 300

8968317

Tetal

B2.4TT, Thiy

148,851

TH4E1253

Tatal

STIELERD

21584505

B33

17124

18736

81,254

O 4EL 253

sl Foport and Financial Statemmenis - For the ypoar ended 15 August 2033 38




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

. AMALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES

Education
Suppaort for other schools
Letsure Facilities

TOTAL 2022

TOTAL 2020

AMALYSIS OF DIRECT COSTS

Ponsion finance costs
Staff costs
Deprociation
Educational supplies
Examination fees
stalf developrnent
Other costs

Supply teachers
Techmology costs

BFi charges

TOTAL 2022

TOTAL 2021

Tho White Here Federxiien

A Cormpary Limited by Cuarnmiee

Activities

undertaken

directly

2032

E

B2 &T7 T

148 BT

EZEBIBESTS

ETET6789

Support

toother

Education schools

2022 2022

E L
472000
53055013
3522976
2642 020
365 800
B0 D
115581
Ga05TT
162160
22 507
B2 &T7 iy

57181630 LE 05

Support
Cogts
2022

25 588,000

QHLG

25607915

2200820

Leisure
facilities
2022

£

16754

962

15

14885

147124

Total

158,676

B8, 234 490

78379999

Total
funds
2022
&TZ000
53201667
3522976
2,662,020
365,809
280082
L156,056
640377
102100
262 5007

62,626,575

57376789

Total
furmds
2021
THIEE 05
LE04

EE S8

TS99

A% restatad
Tevtal
funds

207

£

298000
50658 646
2619 676
L5 ZEQ
L9875
1E515
257561
201900
128 817

2FLRA0

57576789

Anrrkal Report end Ficancial Statements - B ohe pear ersed 51 Aggua 200




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

i AHALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE BY ACTIVITIES [continued)

AMALYSIS OF SUPPORT COSTS

Pension finance costs

Staff costs
Depreciation
Other costs

Recrulbmeant
and support

Maintenance af
prermises and
eQuipmaent
Clearing

Rent and rates
Engrgy costs

ImSUrance

Secunty and
tramspart

Cataring
Technalogy costs
Office overhoads

Legal and
prchesshnral

Bank interest
and charges

PFI charges
Loss on transfer
of academy out
of Trusk

TOTAL 2022

TOTAL 201

ZTTO00

1BZ3 414

2EE545

JER2T

A5

1810850

DT 544

W72 I69

102,055

555,805

188,925

27&300

Bt 038

B35.551

2358240

2127

18T A5

2.298 937

25 58R.0°70

21984 400

Support to

Education other schools

022
£

69

Leisure Total
facilities funds

10623 414
FEESES

38.627

TILASE

Te? 1B &52
5865 925409
w7368

1,102,055

335805

198,925
24300
LrGd Bdte O

12 B35,54%

£.260 2360500

1164 52

187450

2,298,957

ELS 25,607,915

18,736 2200310

A5 restated
Total
funds

F027

E

167,00
100091 563
1.099.028

46 268

&15.6M

1451 971

TroAES

TFiate 575

1,025,558

S50l 847

172na

LINAS

815029

641,008

207z0n

L

[ET-RECLE

22003210
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

10, MET [EXPENDITUREMINCOME

Mot prpenditumelfincome for the year ncludes:

2022 200
i £
Operating lease rentals 390,836 204347
Cepereciation of tangible lxed assets 3373464 33054
FFl Charges L2 507 23018
Fees paid to auditors for
alidit 39000 57000
cther services 1.850 B.450
n STAFF
a. STAFF COSTS
Staff costs during the year were a3 follows:
FALFFS £0E0
£ £
Wages and salaries gy 417,616 4R 26115
Social security costs ity 165 546 LBBOEL
PEnSion costs 15,352 414 15525504

65,795 576 0,647 255

Sraff restructuring coses 239 505 T o259
Supply teacher codts 1,038,087 195 557
65,0638 61,190 594

L] SPECIAL STAFF SEVERANCE PAYMEMNTS

included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutonynon contractual sevarance payments totaling 135715 (202
CHT.9290 The statutery redundancy payments individually during the year wene: £30,000 F30000. £22. 000, £15.773
fEGEE, £5.500, £4.000 £3.515 £2.000. £5.280, £5000, £4.000,

The White Horse Federation

A Comipany Limded by Cuamnio
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

mn STAFF [continued]
& STAFF HUMBERS

The average number of persons empiayed by TWHF during the year was as follows:;

2022

Mo,

Teacher E08

Educational support A5

Admintstration and othér suppart 130

Managermant 10
The average headoount cxpressed as full-time equivalents was:

2022

Mo,

Teachers EED

Ecucaticnal sUpport gl ly

Administration and othar support 225

Marmgarmaent 1m2

1521

Thie White MHorse Federation

& Company Lmited by Gusrantes

200
Ma

&2

&3]

1904

S
Mo

548

&3]
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

n STAFF (continued)
d. HIGHER PAID STAFF

The numiber of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer penskon costs) esceeded E&0 000 was:

2022 2021
Mo Mo
I thva band EGOU0M - ER0.000 28 FL]
in the band £70.000 - E80.000 L 15
i the band EA0U00) - £90,000 & 1
Ir thie band £90.001 - 100000 1 4
in the band £100.007 - ENQ000 1 2
In Eher band EFCOO - £120:000 5 2
ir ther band £1200000 - £130.000 - 1
i e bamd £130,000 - £140,000 1 1
In the band E150.001 - E160.000 - 1
In ke band EVG0,000 - £170.000 1
in the band £190,007 - £200.000 = 1
In the band E200,000 - £210,000 1
in the band E260.001 - £E2770.000 1
in the band EZB0001 - £290.000 - 1

The above employess participated in the Teachers Pension Scheme. Annual equivaient pension contributions during the
perpd. for these staff mmembers amounted o ETERIEE (2021 £B64.Ti4)

o HEY MANACEMENT PERSONMNEL
The key management parscnnel of the TWHF comprise the Trustess and the senior managemaent tearm as listed an page

1. The total amcunt of emaloyee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurancs
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services bo the TWHF was £1,016166 (2021 £1,137037)

Thia Whites Horss Federnton

1 -.'_"rrl;..'|."-. Lirribig By Guandr s
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

12. CENTRAL SERVICES
The TWHF has provided the follewing central services 1o its academies during the year:

= School improvemment

< Educalon support services

= Human resources

= Financisl services and compliance form & central structure

« Long range financial planning and analysis

- Estates managernent

+ Otheor services as arising. incleding new schoal integration and strategic growth

The TWHF charges for these senicas.on the follewing bases:

The aim through the matrix structure s to ensure the Principals focus on teaching and lsarning while sedvices are
commssioned frem the functional teams. To this end the budget process k& key on developing clear cost centre
structures at each school which are then monlbored monthly inclueding pupll premivm acthities. TWHF opecaties a single
funding agreement arnd as such ncorme is controlled at MAT level and allocated 1o schools to address approved cost and
resolce structures as well as support Federation wide School Improverment initiatives

3. TRUSTEES' REMUNERATHIN AMD EXPENSES

Staff Trustess only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the moles of staff and did not
meceive any payments in respect of their role as Trustees, Other Trustees did not receive &ny payments froem the TWHF In
respect of thelr role as Trustees.

The value of staff Trustees remuneration and pension contributions in the year fell into E5.000 banding's ai follomes M
Capsticke Remuneration EX65000 - E270.000 {2020 £280,000 - £2E5000) Emplaoyer's pension contributions ENIE {206
Nl

Dukring the year ended 51 August 2022 expenses totalling £2.905 were mimbursad or paid directly to S Trustess (2020 -
1,218 to 3 Trushias)

W, TRUSTEES" AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE

in accordance with normal commercial practice. the TWHF has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and afficers
frarm claims arsing from negligent acts, emmors of amissions soourming whilst on acadeny business The insurance
provides cover up to £5,000000 an any one clalm and the cost for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £2660 (202
£2 6549 The cost of this insurance Is included In the total Insurance cost

The White Horse Federation

& Compary Limited By Guarsries
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

15, TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Long term Furnitisre
Frechold leasehold and Computer Motor
property property equipment equipment viehlcles Total
E £ L £ L £

COST OR VALUATION
At 1 Spptember 2021
jas restabed | 38393 461 NS5.029.477 5,001 586 651,225 238 605 TE1L 584,158
Additiang 1,063.655 1,280,916 3378032 241528 23985 2,947 456
Dispaosals - 16.394) 16.394)
Tranafar out of Trust [2.404.795) (T76.876] (25.87Z) {11.248) [2,818,741)
At 5 August 2022 18 457116 TNE905598 524513 2,846 881 251052 161,706,465
DEPRECIATION
At 1 September 2021
ias restated ) 6219835 B199.552 3315130 1,954,340 192,239 17,880,876
Charge far the year 695,162 2.088.040 5591579 575,525 25209 57858515
Transfer out of Trust as,o02z) (95.528) (25.873) n0,&31) [379,854)
&1 31 August 2022 4,974,997 10,105,350 anam 2.507992 207,007 Z1.350, 557
HET BOOHK VALUE
At 31 August 2022 34 542116 103,796,248 16354 557 538,889 LEREL 140,555,928
At 31 August 2021
|as restErsd ) I8 175626 10685045 1,776 456 GTEBES 6,166 16350378

Lard and buildings on canversion and acguisition of new Acadernies 1o the Federation have been included in the
accounts at an estimation of thelr value at the date of conversion. [n determining these values the Trustees have referred
o the valuations of land and bufldings provided by the ESFA for obher lpcal schooks which were performed using the
Depreciated Feplacermant Codt method

'WiF has beer granted use of certain schooal buildings under Supplemental Agreerments with varnous [hocese The
Trustees consider that under this agreement the risks and newards of owneship remain with the Dsocede. Therefone the
relewant lnd and Budldings haws nat been included within the lang-term leasehald property of TWHE

incided in frechold lad arnd Buildings = 06789180 (2021 £6.780180) of land, which s not depreciated

Thas Wihiite Horse Federation

(] |.-I-:""||JI'.':|' Lirrwtieg] Gy i el Pl
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

16 DEBTORS

DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

Trade debtors

Other debtors

Prepayrments and accrsed incoma

VAT ropayabie

17. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

ESFA lnans

Trade croditors

Othar taxation and social sacurity
Other creditars

Accrisals and deferred incomae

Deferred incomeae at | September 2031
Resources deferred during the year

Amounts released fram previous penods

32,170
1L97TT.316
B3, T20

1, T8583

&7 TR
1062 045
1,01, 493
1.389, 666
5,905,661
TA16, 615
2023

E

1267 4617
BE3IIZT
N2&7.617)

B83327

215703
BB 218

LE4TET

2021
E

764,798
702226
997,055
L115.816
2408310
5468 605
2031

£

913902
1247417
{933.9032)

1247417

Af the balance sheet date the Federation was holding ESFA. Local Authority grants and tnp income ceived n advance

for this 202223 academic ypoar

Thae White Horse Federation
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

18, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAM ONE YEAR

2022 2001
L L
ESFA loans 189,214 27803

The aggregate amount of lipbdlities payable or repayable winolly or in part rmaore than frve years after the reporting date is

2022 2021
£ E
Payable ar repayable by instalments 16,168 L7213

The loan included above s due to the ESFA A loan of E188.215 FO21: £2 716035} was received for Condition Improvement
Fund projects. A repayment schedule for these lsans has been agreed with the Departrment for Education and the loans
are lnterest free.

19, PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

These inancial staternents include a prior year adjustment to correct @ matenal misstaternent criginating in the 201819
and 2020421 financial years for free schools donated by the Local Autherity

The donation of leasehold property at Cagle Brook Primany School wad not recognised in the 201819 financial
staternents, including s subsequent depreciation in the 3 years following

The domation of leasehald property at Whitelands Academy was not recognised in the 2020021 financal stalements
Imcluding its subsequent depreciation in the 11 month perod followirg.

The restatermont had resulted n the opening Restricted Fixed Asset Fund (REAF) at 31 August 2022 bedng increased by
E21 56170 and the opening RFAF fund at 31 Auvgust 2021 being increasad by E7.721335 Net incomae in the year ended 31
August F021 has been increated by 14269000 to recognise the denation af the leasehold property at Whitelands
Seadermy. Net Expanditure in the year ended 5 August 2021 has incressed by £394 165 to recognise the depreciation
charge relating to both praperties at Gagle Brook Primary School and Whitelands Acadermy.

Tha Whilts Home Federation
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

if. STATEMEWMT OF FUNDS

As restated
Balance at Balance at
1 Septamber Transfers Galns/ 31 August
2021 income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2022
UNRESTRICTED FUNDS i i 3 E E £
General funds 567 915 %096 5345 [3.017.393) - . 1LEB&T 4EG
RESTRICTED CEMERAL
FUMNDS
General Annual Grant L H0T E8.136,663 (57, 767.884) {615,186) . 4
High Moeds . 6093800 (5083800 ' : -
Pupil premium . 3.ma.7e7 (5,008,767 - - 2
UIFSH . 928559 [928.555) . : .
PE Sports Grant N5.000 456 8B0 57,8800 . ' *
Toachers Pay & Pension - 07064 (BO07,164) . - =
Grants
COVID 18 catch up premium 130,000 6,836 36.836) - . -
Othar COWID-19 ESFA funding . &B0,215 [284,151) . : 196,084
iOther OFE / ESFA granis : 1249, 798 249,798} . : -
Other government grants . 21565437 [Z136.118) - . i O
Othar COWVID- 19 government ' 75176 (30,625) - ' &4 551
grants
Other Rpatricted Incamse - 7389 (E7.389) | - v
Trips Denations - 532,668 (532,668 - - -
FEnEson ressne (&2, 510,000) e (6, 0:43,000) . E 163,000 (2.570.000]
(G2 220 535) TEATOAST  (79,11B6,630) (&13.986) &6, 183,000 (2.108,.961]

Thia Whits Horss Fadaraton
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Motes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

20, STATEMENT OF FUNDS |(continued)

RESTRICTED FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Fixed assots transfesmed on
COMWTs|on

Eixed assats purchased from
CAG and other restricted

School Condition Allocation
Devalved Farmula Capital
DOC Copital Grant
Melicgharm Qak IT & FFE Grant
LA Capital Grants

Danated Assers

TOTAL RESTRICTED FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS

Ag restated

Balance at

1 Septembar

20
E

NL4HZLETS

9,484,229

1.015,628

104,135

21,596,170
Thede 571,865
102451272

103,019,197

Inicorme

1,545,246

298,257

BO9. 227

ZA5L. T30

75,623.187

T8, T20.121

Expenditure
E

(1753, 729)

(390,430
(1, 7Fr 580}
(208,257)
(38,723)
(104,155}
(309, 227)
(616377}
(6,088,458
{85.217.097)
[88.234,690]

The specific purpases for which the funds ane v be appiied are as follows

RESTRICTED FUNDS

Transiers
infout

&3 186

&13.186

56,183,000

Balance at

Galns/ 31 August
(Lossos) 02
i E

109,669,150

8,506,985

Ta3.294

1o

21.179.793

- 141,165,525

LEVER D00 139,040.362

140,687 828

The Cenarsl Annual Grant represents funding recelved from the Education and Skills Funding Agency during the period
in order to fund the continuing activities of the schoaols

High Mmacds :"uru.'ling 15 recened from tho Local Authority ta caber for pupild with learning difficulties and other ditabdlites

Fupil premium funding reprasents amounis recebaed from the ESFA to cater for disadvantaged pupits

LIFSM (Universal Infant Froe School Meals) is received from the ESFA for the provision af free sefool rreeals (o b supplied
to all students up to and |ncluding year 2

PE sports grant represents funding received from the ESFA and must be wsed to fund improwerrents to the provigion of

PE and sport. for the benefit of primany-eged puplis so that they develop healthy lifestyles

Thes White Horse Fedssration

A& Cormpanyg iLimmrbad By Cumnnranmsg
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

20. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

Teachers pay & pension grants |s received from the ESFA to fund Teacher's payrises and increases to pansion contribution
rates

COVIE-19 catch up premium is recieved from the ESFA to help pupils catch up on missed education due 1o the
disruptions caused by the pandemic.

COVID-E Crants represents excepibonal ciaims made under the Sovernmeant Congnavirus Job Betention Schéma

Ovher DfE [ ESFA grants represents other smalier grants recewved including rates reimbemsement. Yeal 7 catch up, school
Improvement and academy bursany funding

LA Bupil support support grants repaesents income recelved from (ocal authadities far the fallowing schames: Primany
Behaviour Support Semnvice, Young Peaple Support Service. Child and Adclescent Mental Health Sandce. Local Authaty
Pupll pramium & Pupil Referral Unit Sendce

Cither LA grants ripresants smaller grants recodved from local suthorities, this includes a Ministry of Defense grant for the
support of students with parents serving at local military sites. This also incluedes ther grants represants smallar grants
radeivied Inam nan geverniment sources.

Trip donations reprgsents dorations made by parents towards the ooars of educational trips during the
PET

Pension reserve - This represants the Federation's share of the assots and labilitses in the Local Government Pension
Scheme A3 with most pension schemes this & cumently (0 deficit due to an excess of scheme Habilities over schema
assets which was inherited on conversion ste an academy. The Fedoration i fallowing the recommendations of the
actuary to reduce the deficlt by making additional contributions ovar a mnumber of years

FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Fixed asseis transferred on corversion sepresent the bullding and equipment donated to the Fedemation on corversion

to an acadermy.

Fixed assets purchased from GAC and other restricted funds represent amounts spent an leed assets fromm GAG or other
restricted funding recenved from the ESEA or other bodies, such as the grants listed balow. On purchase of a fixed asset
fram the funds below (of CAC) a transfer i recognhised inla the Fixed asets purchased fram CAS and other restricted
fund. The balances carred foreard on the funds listed below on represent unspent cash or accrued funds at the year
ol

LSchool Condition Allocation represents funding recesved from the DIE to fund large capital projects as the Acadeny
Trust deems requined.

Devolved Formula Capital represents funding secehved from the ESFA to cover the maintenance and purchase of the
Federation's assets

CCC Capinal and opening grants represents funding reckeved from the |ocal authority for urgent repales to a school reof
and other cost iIncurmed on comversion o an academy

Thie White Horss Federathon
Annial Report and Financial Statements - For the yoor ended 2 August 2022
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

20, STATEMEMNT OF FUNDS [continuad)

Melksham Oak IT & FFE Grant represents funding received from the local authority to cover the major refurbishrment of
the IT suites and equipment at the Melkiham Gak site

L& Capital Crants reprosents grants received by the Local Authority in relatkon o capital projects
Conated Assets eprasonts free schools including land arnd butldings donated by the Local Authanity
OTHER INFORMATION

Linder the funding agreemeant with the Secretary of State, the TWHF was not sulbject to a imit on the amount of Cad it
could camy forward at 31 August 2022

Comparative information in respect of the preceding yvear 15 as follows:

As restated As restabed
Baslarce ot Balance at
1 Septembor A5 restated A5 restated Transfers Gains/ 31 August
UNRESTRICTED 2020 Incame  Expenditure It (Losses) 20
FUMDS £ £ E E E [
Ceneral funds SB6.153 2786102 {2,784 330 567925
RESTRICTED
GENERAL FUNDS
Ceneral Annual Geant [551.465) 53652.048 (55.0500.421) {5.755] Gty 600
High Needs 58009845 (5.800.984)
Pugpil presniumn 283030 {2.890.57)
16 - 19 Allocathan 48388 (LB Eaa)
LHFSM 1274135 1278135}
PE Sports Grant 458020 [Bes 020} 5000
Teachers” Pay
E Penuan Grants 2 ETB A5 12.678.351)
COVID-19 eateh-up
premiumn B9 880 (432 584 (329.395) 150,000
COVID-19 grants " 165,71 [Tiets, 721
Other OFE [
ESFA grants 553500 (393.30]
LA Pupi! support
grants Ta5 053 (145 8955)
Other LA grants 305881 (A5 8E1]

Tl Wit Horss Fedarition

B Loimipsany Limifed oy Ll andesn
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

20, STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued )

As restated As restated
RESTRICTED Balance st Halance at
GCEMERAL FUNDS  1Soptember As restated As restated Transfers Gains/ 31 August
[continued) 2020 Income  Expenditure infout [Losses) 2021
E £ £ £ i [
Teaching Schoal 2550) 10ES ; 1.B2H
furding
Trlps Donations [3.859] 5858
Devolved Farmula
Capital 251778 (93.085) [188.605]
Penshon resere [26.855000) (4522 000} M33.000) (42 510.000)
[27.418.59895) 3 SB8 4506 (T.728,975) {528,001) (11133000} (42,220 593)

RESTRICTED FIXED ASSET FUNDS

Flued assets

transferrad an

COMVERSHON 535567 (B51.082) NE423. 879
Fined assets

purchased from GAas

and other restricted aEMNG eBs B E] ¥l D4EL TS
Schoo! Condition

Alocation B4l 598 1492 852 (1.3 yz2) 1015628
CaFeoived Formiuia

Capital 15,961 i {204 656) 198 695

DOC Capetal Grant 2T 585 - (s 731 4E A2

Melksharm Cak 17

& FFE Grant ELala el e (85.865] Je R E L

L& Capital Grants 220037 (520.037)

Donated Asseis T.TIE585 14 2640000 [Bas 185) 215096170
152.008,6835 16.081 885 {5947 850) 528.091 Ik B71BES

TOTAL RESTRICTED
FUNDS 10 520 B40 B5ET0 255 [TGE76923) [T 1530 102451272

TOTAL FUNDS 105156 593 BB 456 657 (F5.461.253) V0153, T jLEsEn] Rl

The Wihite More Fedenmtion

& Company Limied by Guarnanies
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

20, STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued])
TOTAL FUNDS AMALYSIS BY ACADEMY

Fund balances for each acadermy at 31 August 2022 and 31 August 2021 were zero, hence a breakdown by acadenmy is not
included in these sccounts

TWHF succossfully operate a CAG pooling approach to its income, and further to that collective approach, operate thelir
budget setiting and accounting structures on a contribution basks - be the Trust do not top slice. which has beean tha
traditional approach to the funding of the central and strategic functions of tchoals histarially

The approach we take o resenves is a slightly mone stepped” approach to the blarket Al nebenes are central resenaes”
To that end, I 5 school hes pegative contributhen (defined by expenses allocated greater than Income allocated), we will
show that as negative resendes in the annwal accounts Then, e the school continues it improsenent joumey and stans
bo Burn & pasitive contribution, at which point the reserves are centralised once neutrality has been reached

Civen TWHE has a reputation for taking on challenging schoots, it is impertant both t© recognise the scale of the Impact
these tumarounds have financially on TWHF, and thon to mark the progress that has ocouned in the turnanourd

In the prior Year. Beak Academy and John Madejski Academy have extinguished their negative reserves from the firancial
yoear ended 31 Auwgust 2020,
TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY

Expendlture inturred by each academy during the year was a5 folloes:

Teaching and
educational Cther Other costs

support SUpport Educational excluding Total Taotal
stalf costs staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 o
E £ £ 3 £ £

Bowrerhlll Brirmary
fcademy 1,20 409 16 620 52754 1ag.orry 1.554 860 14585558

Thee Craft Primany
Academy LIZEETD 175542 G329 185295 1,EE7 845 1,521,061
Devizes School & 7EL OGS R 556047 £E1,350 6,G68,E8E 6363713
Drowve Primary School 2080437 51134 57454 288712 278767 2B08370

Forest and Sandridge

C ol E School L4535 T 135,684 B85 106 216257 1.ESE, 081 I.701B592
Cagle Brook Brimary

School LET 19 55T 22 568 oeanT 655,721 Sk T45
Gloucester Academy - 2|

Gorse Hill Primary
Lchoal 1331350 172800 62,108 241022 1.807.290 1779413

Tha White Horse Federation

& Company Linmed by Guaanioes
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

0. STATEMENT OF FUNDS [continued)

TOTAL COST ANALYSIS BY ACADEMY

Expenditure incurmed by gach acadery during the year wis as follows:

Teaching and
educational other Other costs
support support  Educational excluding Total Tetal
stafi costs staff costs supplles depreciation 2023 2022
3 E E £ E £
Grange infant School 801,748 (LS ] 4,808 143,287 1TLD0& 10680
Grange Junior School 1LOS93ET 128810 I1EG4 17735 1358396 1526 466
Haydon Wick Primany
Sehpal 92759 1306879 545198 1525498 12194655 1142 681
John Madajski
Academy JE58ETE IED2 32642%E 1NE465 5395500 & 608330
Larkhill Brimary
School 656616 BE6.52% S0.251 167852 961,122 SaT.455
The Manor Cof E
Prirnany School THBE LSS GE BLE HODUE DS V96076 1.152.070 12006 514
Moregon Primary
School L4562 564 #1521 48154 450,811 2,035 350 2,054,137
tountford Manor
Prirnarny School 9%& T3 151 BEZ 353208 162,986 1,284 850 1214277
Fieiksharm Oak
Commanity Schood LE50909%2 BOE &4 121.am TIOE2E TI0ENS GieE024E
Myland Spocial School 15097049 TETeR BRIT3 263164 1,939, 81 10,856
Foak Azademy 1282 553 TES 4] 129750 2575008 L7790 220,765
Tha Bidgoway School
& Sheth Farm College 6905640 STDa5s 400356 1252198 9109127 8501415
Aodbourne Cheyney
Prirmany School BL4 390 128 &40 2054 147928 1340308 1,097 2ty

Seend C of E Primary
School SO6S93 2098 LEEE 1Cr. S 588518 56521

Shaw € of E Prirmany
Schogl 160200 a5 Oty 16T baf 4iE 1,074 355 954 841

Thein W s Findad 51RO A 15
y Annual Report and Firancial Statermenls - Fos Uhe yese endied] 51 At 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

I0. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)

TOTAL COST AMALYSIS BY ACADEMY [continued)

Teaching and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educaticnal excluding Total Tatal
staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation 2022 2032
E E £ £ L L
5t Ceorges C ol E
Primany School w92 516 3l 456 £1.428 &0 588 632,199 479,178

51 Mary's Browghton
Gifford C of E Prirmnary
School 235574 28553 641 Th 053 E47.621 &G0 165

51 Marys & All Saints
Church af England

Brimasny Schoal 1095228 11,Dé6 24 036 2305849 1464 854 544 B0
Southbroom Infanis

Lohool ETD Lty TE AL FL IR 121977 9017193 4T IT
Sauthweld County

Primarny Schoal 1222172 158 444 58565 157343 1.597 526 131466
5t Luke's Acadermy L0 285 21E151 149,859 223694 1,683,998 L7EL24
Tregoae Brimary School TG 02 [ et 64950 124 501 955 418 0.0o7F

Waest Kidlington Brimary

Schood & Mursery 14T E 24 b4 819 42975 KT a6 1482852 1598595
Whitelands Academy 1OE4& TS T 14l 0B i57359 14636826 P0I55
Zouch Prireary School 1,495,351 152 483 SREST 215175 1.918. 716 757055
Teaching School

Central = B1.254
Central Senices 1895150 2812 506 {20,761 1 EET.838 15,080,431 T2 452 W00
TWHF 51,0195, T BSTREL JN0557 £1. 5652894 Bid 4445 969 5754609

Thest Wit Horse Fisd e mikam

i Cormpary Limdisd by Cufanise
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

A AMALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

AMHALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
CURRENT YEAR

Tangible fixed assets

Current assets

Creditors due within one year
Creditors due in rmore than one year
Provisions for [labllitles and charges
TOTAL

AMALYSIS OF MNET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS
PRICR YEAR

Tanginle fived assets

Current dssots

Creditors dus within ane yaar
Creditors duo in mone than one yaar
Provisions for Rabdlities and changes

TOTAL AS RESTATED

Thes Wrhi ter Horss Fedsration

B Cormparmy Lirmied Dy Gunnanises

Unrestricted
furnds 2022

1 64T 486

1647 4640

Uinrestrcted
fungds H021
E

567925

S67.925

Restricted
furds 2022
E

1786665
(741661
MES214)
(23700000

(2188.961)

Hestricted
funds 203
£

0806515

(5408 E605)

ZTLE0E)

(632 500,000}

(42 220,555}

Restricted
Fined asset
funds 2022

£

140 255028

Ta3.395

161143 335
A5 restated
Restrichod
fixed asset
funds 2021
E
163503278

1168 587

ik, 571 BES

A5 restated
Total funds
2021

£

13503 278
TIBBIZT
[54EE B0S]
127603]

(42 510.000)

0501a er

Annusl Repart and Fnancial Slatemenis - For U yead snded 31 August D0E2 57




MNotes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

22 RECOMCILIATION OF NET (EXPENDITURE INCOME TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Mot (expenditure fincame for the year (a5 per statement aof fimancial activities)

ADIUSTMENTS FOR:

Depreciation

Capital grants from DIE and other sounces
InteErgst recelvable

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Defined benefit pensian soheme finance ¢odl
Decreaselincrease) in debtos

Incresde in crediton

met loss on acadery transferred out of the Trust
Loss on dsposal of fioed assets

Donated fixed assets

HET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2% CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES

Bepayment of ESFA loans

HET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

26 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest recenablo

Purchase of tangibde fizsed assets

Capital grants from DIE Group and other sources

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Ths Wbt Horss Federathan

[8,514.369)

3,789,515
(2.152,730)
(914)
6.092.000
749,000
129,088
2124538
1500937

6,394

5725459

~8

(278,919}

(Z78,.919)

FLIF S
£

9l
(2,947 4698])
2152750

(793.652)

&5 rostated
2021
E

B985 204

505208
124 .5a0)
(583]

&, 053,000
&E5.000
{296.548)

1502 963

a8 000)

1541 RS

202
E

{31E Gl

(318 443}

2021
E

543
12225 066
£ 117 380

(107 085

irrvusl Report and Financial Staterments - For the viar ended 11 sugust 2023 58

A Cormpany Lirmbed by Cussnd s




Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

25  AMALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash in hand and at barnk

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEMNTS

26 AMALYSIS OF CHAMGES IN HET DEBT
Cath &t bank arsd im Bansd

Dbt disewithilm 1 year

Dbt due after | year

7. CAPMTALCOMMITMENTS

At Seplember
20

4 038 456

(264 208)

(27,603)

CONTRACTED FOR BUT NOT PROVIDED IN THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Seguisition of tangible fxed assets

Theis WPt ir Hidir Faetd of i Dhior

A Company Limiéted By Cosranies

2022

T.5089.145

T.500, 14k

196,530

2929607

TO8.552

2021

& 558.L56

& 838456

AL 31 August
2022

L

7.589,144
(67, 768)
(189,214)

7331162

2021
£

1046310

Anrrsal Report ard Finencial Statorments - For the voar ended 1 Soguest 3022




MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

18 PENSION COMMITMENTS

The TwiHFs employees belong to two principal pension schemes the Teachars' Penshon Scheme England and \Wales
[TP5} for academic and related staff; and the Local Covernment Pension Scheme (LGPS] for non-teaching staff, which is
maraged by Wiltshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The |atest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the pericd ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 51 March 2019

Contributions amounting to ELGBE TS5 - were pavable to the schermes at 1 August 2022 2030 - £1080.163) and ane
Imcluded within creditors.

TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Teachers Persion Scheme (TPS) is a statutony, contributony. defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers'
Pension Schems Regulations 2004, Membershilp s autormatic for full time teachers in academies Al teachers have the
option ta opt out of the TRS following enralmaent

The TPS is an wunfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions. a5 a percentage of salary
these contributions are credited to the Excheguer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds
provided by Parliament

VALUATION OF THE TEACHERS' PENSION SCHEME

The Covernment Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, condocts a forrmal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance
with the Pubdic Service Pensions (Valuaticons and Employer Cost Capl Déirections 2004 published by HM Troasun eveny 4
years The alm of thie review 4 to specily the level of future eantibutions. Actuarial scherme valuations are dependent on
assurnptions about tha value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors Thie latest actuarial valuation of
the TPS was carfled out as at 31 March 2016 The valuation repart was published by the Department for Education on 5
March 2019 The hey elermants of the valuation and subsequent consultation are;

= Employer contribution rates set at 25.68% of pensionable pay (incleding a O 08% administration lew)
Total scheme liabilities [pensions curmently in payment and the estimated cost of futune benefits) for sendice 1o the
effective date of EXIBI00 millkon ard netional assets (estimated future contributions together with the noticnal
investrments hetd at the valuation date] of F1896100 million. giving a national past senvice deficit of £22.000 mallion
The SCADE rate. sot by HMT, is used to determine the notional irmeestrment returm, The current SCAPE rate = 2.4% aboe
the rate af TP, assumed real rate of returm s 24 (n excess of prices and 2% in excess of eamings. The rate of real
garnings growth is assumed to be 2 2% The assumaed nrorminal rate of return including eamings growin i «455%

The naxt valdation result s due to be implemented fram | April 2023

The employer's pension costs pasd (o TRPS 0 the year amounted to £6309414 - (2030 - EGOD58.50& )

A copy of the waluation report and supporting documentation 5 on the Teacherss Pernsions websie
ihttps/ifwwns teacherspensions coukfnews/employers2019/04 fteac hers- ponsions-valuation - report aspx)

Under the definitions set owt in FRS 10E. the TRS & an unfunded multi-emploser pension scheme, The TWHF has
Becounted for s contnbutions Lo the scheme as il i wee a deflined contributien scheame. The TWHF Ras s8t cul above
the information awailable on the schame

The White Horis Faderation

& Cormyplmy Limiied by Cuaranies
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

28,  PEMSION COMMITMENTS [continued)
LOCAL COVERMMENT PEMSION SCHEME

The LCPS i 8 funded defined benalt penakon schame. with the assets held in separate trustesadminsterad funds The
tatal contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2022 was £4.552.000 - (2021 - E6371.000] of which employers
contributiong totalbed F3620.000 - (2021 - £3.434)000) and employess contributions totalled E925000 - 2020 - £957.000)
The agreed contribution rates for future years ane 22.8 per cont for employers arnd 55 - 125 per cent for employses

A5 described in nete the LGRS obligation relates to the empioyess of the TWHF, who werne the employees transferred as
part of the corversion frarm the maintained seheal and ey emplopees who ywere eligible to. and did. joln the Scheame In
the year. The obligation in respect of employess who transferred on comearnsion represents their cumulative senice at
both the predecessor schoal and the TWHF 8t the balamce sheet date

Farliarment has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education to a guaraniees that in the event of academy

closure, outstanding Local Gevernment Pension Schema Babilities woald be met by the Departrment for Education The
guaranbes carme into force on 18 July 2013,

PRIMCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS

20TE 2021

L] )

Rate of Increase in salaties 545 330
Rate of increace for pensions in payrments 3,05 220
Disecunt rate for scheme llabilitles 25 LES
infiatlon assurmiption [CRI) 305 290

The eurfent mortality ssumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvemignts in mortality rates. The assumed
life expactations on retirement age &5 are:

2022 2021
RETIRIMNG TODAY Years Yiears
males 217 219
Famales 253 Fly iy
RETIRIMNG IH 20 YEARS
Males il ] 229
Females Z6.0 261

The White Horns Federaton

A Cornpanyy Lmibed by Cuaranies
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

28, PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued )
SHARE OF SCHEME ASSETS

PWHF's share of the assets in the scheme was

Equities

Corporate bonds

Froperty

Cash and other liquid assats

TOTAL MARKET VALUE OF ASSETS

The actual returm on scheme assets was £2.613.000 (2021 - £E578.000).

The armountd recognsed in the Staverment of © nameial acthaties are as fodlows

Curent senvico cost

Past service cost

interest income

Interest cost

Cainflioss) on satthement

TOTAL AMOUNT RECOGMNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF FINAMNCIAL ACTIVITIES

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit oblegationd wene a5 follows:

AT 1 SEPTEMBER

Transferred out on existing academies leaving the Trust
Imierest cost

Employes contributions

Actuarial losses | [gains)

Benefits pand

Past service cost

Current senaice cost

AT 31 AUGUST

Thas 'Whirte Horee Federabion

iAiasl Peport @ Financlsl Stalemanis - Fod

A Comepaliiy Lt by Coarnrips

AL31
August 2022
£

29 MN8,000
16,716,000
8,089,000

53,923,000

(9,656,000)
{E5, 000
810,000

1.659.000)
T98,000
[2.672,000)

At 31 August
202N

£
20352000
17,601,000
5,870,000
534 000

53367.000

2031
£

{7.487,000)

775000

1,264, 0300

[7.956,000])

20

TOTRE 000

1264000
937000
TE441.000

11,008 000 )

P AET OO0

85577 000

Ehie yar eraled B Aogiig 702




Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

2B PENSION COMMITMENTS [continued)

Changes in the fair value of TWHFs share of scheme assets were as follows:

2023 2001

£ £

AT 15EPTEMBER E3367.000 458917000
Transferred out on existing academies leaving the Trust (591,000)

interast Incorme 90,000 TrE000

Actuanal gains (3,541,000) S308000

Employer contributions 5639000 1455000

Employes contributions 923,000 SE7.000

Benefits paid (T74%,000) {10e0 2, R0 )

AT 31 AUGUST 53,913,000 53.3687.000

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 51 Auvgust 2022 TWHF had commitments to make future minlmum lease paymants under non-cancellable operating

keases as follows
2022 203
i E
Hat later than 1 year 156274 590.0836
Later than 1 year arsd not later tham 5 years 527943 a7 a2y
Later than 5 years 136,282 856,955
1,020,499 2535618

Mosedon Primary School sccupies bulldings that ane subject 1o a PR agreement The amount included [noperating lease
commitments above is the projected revenus payrment for future years. This agreemant will expire in 2030 and cach
annual payrment & subject 1o inflationary Increases

I, MEMBERS LIABILITY
Each member of the charitable company undertakes 1o contribute to the assets of the cormpany in the event of it being

wound up while e/she is a member, or within one year after hefshe coases to be a8 membaer, such amount a5 may be
required, nat exceeding 10 for the debis and llabllities contracted before hefshe ceases to be a member
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

. HRELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Ohadineg Lo thie natune of the TWHF and the composition of the Board of Trustess bedng drawm from local pulblic and privata
sector organisations. transactions may take place with organisations In which the trustees have an Intenest All
rransactions invealvicg such erganisations are conducted in accordance with the requirerments of the Acadery Trust
Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 Apl 2009 and abtaining thedr approval
wehere reguired, and with the TWEHFS financial regulations and nofmal procumement procedures relating to connected
and related party transactions:

Mo refated party tramsactions took place in the peried of account other than certain Trustess remunaration and
expenues already disclosed in the notes to the accounts

32,  AGENCY ARRAMCGEMENTS

TWHF distributes 1618 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA In the accounting period ended 31 August 2022
the Acaderny Trust recetved E48 575 and disbursed EGB.575 from the fund, An amount of EMIL s incleded in cther creditors
relating to undistributed funds that s repavable to ESFA,

I3, CONTROLUNG PARTY

The company iS5 under the point control of the Memibers. Thene 1§ no ultimate controlling pary

Thee Whits Hora Federation

& Company Limited by Cunramviss
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Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2022 (continued)

s, TRANSFER OUT ON ACADEMIES LEAVING THE TWHF

On 1 August 2072, The Peak Acaderny Uransfered out of The White Horse Federation and joined Beach South Academy
Trust. The White Horse Federation pool their reserees, 50 it was agreed that the school was to be transferred on net EX
frive reserves basie

The White Horse Federation charged the sequiring trust for any prepald costs and accrued income (EVL.504) less any
accrued costs and deferred income (E156.746] as at the point of the transfer. The net payrment of £165242 was transberrad
to Reach South Acadermy Trust after the year end and has been included in the breakoown Below

Transier out
on academy
leaving the
trust
| 3
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Larg-term leasehold propeny 2NETTE
Furniture arnd sguiprmient B157
Maotor vehicles a7
CURREMT ASSETS
Debtors due within one year 11504
Cash at bank and in hamo 145242
LLABILITIES
Creditors due within one vear 156,746}
PENSIOMNS
Pensions - pension scheme assets 591 000
Pensions - pension scheme lakilites (1389000
HET ASSETS L500.857

35, INVESTMENTS

The Trust owns the entine sharne capital of TWHF Educatianal Seriaces Limited and TWHF Consultancy Serices Limimed
Both sulbsidiary companies have £1 share capltal and have not tracted and ame dormant The accounts of the subsidiankes
are nat consolidated into the Trust as it would be immatesal to do so

Tho Whitte Hores Foderatikon

A Company Limiiss By Cuarsnisn
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